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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to our shareholders the annual report
of Softpower International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year, the Group discontinued its biomass pellet fuel
products segment, and its result presented as discontinued
operation. The result of trading of pipes and fittings, our core
business is still presented as continuing operation.

The Group’s revenue from continuing operation of about
HK$497.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$527.6 million), representing a decrease of 5.7% as compared
to last year. For the discontinued operation of biomass pellet
fuel products segment, its revenue was approximately HK$0.3
million, representing a decrease of 92.1% from HK$3.8 million
last year. The gross profit margin from continuing operation was
approximately 28.3% for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: 25.3%). The profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company from continuing and discontinued operations was
HK$20.2 million for the year under review (2019: HK$6.8 million),
representing a significant increase of approximately 197.1% over
last year. Basic earnings per share from continuing operation was
HK2.3 cents (2019: HK0.87 cent).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company does not recommend a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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Chairman’s Statement
EN T80

BUSINESS REVIEW

It was tough and most challenging at the start of 2020. The
outbreak of COVID-19 at the beginning of 2020 presented
challenges to the global economic environment. Despite the
volatile operating environment during the year under review, the
Group recorded a net profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company HK$20.2 million, a substantial increase of 197.1% over
HK$6.8 million a year ago, even with a 5.7% decline in revenue
from continuing operation to HK$497.3 million.

The Group continued to focus on its core business, supplying
pipes and fittings to the construction sector. In the first half of
2020, the COVID-19 pandemic control measures greatly impacted
many business activities. In order to contain the pandemic, work
was suspended at some construction sites, resulting in the delay
of the delivery of goods. This disruption negatively impacted our
revenue in the first half of the year.

For the biomass pellet fuel products segment, the negative impact
brought by COVID-19 affected its normal operation in the first
half of the year. This segment continued to record a loss for the
year under review. Due to the sustained losses and after further
consideration, management decided to discontinue the operation
in the biomass pellet fuel products segment. Accordingly, the
Group made a provision for impairment of property, plant and
equipment of HK$9.7 million. The performance of this segment
had a drag on the Group’s overall net profit.

In the second half of the year, the construction activities recovered
gradually despite further COVID-19 outbreaks. With hard work
and reliable supply chain, our sales performance improved in the
second half of the year. We remained profitable for the year under
review by managing costs and operational efficiency. Hong Kong
Government subsidies such as Employment Support Scheme and
other Anti-epidemic Fund helped to defray staff costs and alleviate
operating costs. These relief measures helped many companies in
Hong Kong as well as our Group in an extremely difficult business
environment.

The Group maintained a solid financial position. Despite operating
in a competitive environment, our pipes and fittings business
segment continued to improve its gross margin. During the year
under review, we secured numerous new notable projects such as
the third runway of Hong Kong International Airport and Queen'’s
Hill public housing.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Moving forward, the COVID-19 situation remains uncertain and
we expect the year ahead to remain challenging. The Group
will continue to take a prudent approach which is important to
weather the challenging times ahead. We will continue to pay
close attention to the impact of COVID-19. We will take the
necessary measures to protect the health and safety of our staff in
order to maintain our normal business operations.

The Group understands the importance of resilience to adapt
to the changing environment. The Group is committed to invest
more resources to streamline its operations by leveraging on
digitization and technologies to enhance our competition and
efficiency.

As supported by the Hong Kong Government'’s policy on the
supply of more public housing and strong demand for residential
properties in the market, we believe that it will boost the demand
for construction materials for both the public and private sectors.
We are optimistic about the prospects of pipes and fittings
business in Hong Kong and Macau.

APPRECIATION

In closing, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
deepest thanks to our shareholders, customers, suppliers and
banks for their continuous support. | would also like to thank
our Directors, management team and employees for their
commendable efforts and valuable contribution to the Group over
the years. With our concerted efforts, we can deliver both revenue
and profit growth.

Lai Fulin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021

Chairman’s Statement
EN T80

REEI=

REAK  2019BRB BB NATRE -
BRI RE DS TRHR - ERYERR
MR - BEENRARERMERNEE
BT - RIS ER IR E201 9T A S
FE - B REUL B HiBRES Tr
FANZ 2 - DR E R S8 -

RERBIRANE B L 1 BB BT B B L HOIR
BHNEZEN - ARBENNKREEZER
UM BEF R RIS E T MK
ML EE -

EEEBNEHEESZ AXEENBERNX
F N RMSHEETYENRDFTR - FFIHE
SEAHER AR E BRFTE IR EM AR K -
HPEEBIRFIE B REFEBHHATRRE

5|28 -

2 €

& NABRELEEESE —EARZHREM
MEURER - BF - HEFKRIRTT RER
FUHE - FANMERHES SEEK
MEBIHAEEZFRIELESESZNS N
LEBEBEMER - ZM—-RLEBA - A A5
ZRWARMFBERIEE o

EEB
T

BB ZF-—F=A=-+WA

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % #§ °



Mission and Strategy
6 i 2 SR

The business of the Group was commenced in 1949 as a pipe’s
retail shop. Now the Group has developed into a sizeable
company and become a listed company in the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 21 December 2000. We
root in Hong Kong 71 years and are the mainstay of the industry.

The principal business of the Group is the importing and selling
of a comprehensive range of pipes, fittings and other related
accessories of different materials, applications and brand names in
Hong Kong by Bun Kee (International) Limited (“Bun Kee"). Sales
of the Group’s products are conducted either by wholesale or
retail sale. We offered quality goods storage and logistic services
for local main contractors and landlords. Throughout the years,
the Group has supplied quality piping materials to many landmark
projects in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China.

The mission of the Group is to provide high quality products to
the customers and serve with value-added and excellent customer
services.

In attaining the above, we provide “one-stop-shop”platform that
provides high quality and a variety of pipes and fittings that readily
available to our customers in ways that meet their needs and
exceed their expectations.

Whenever you think pipes and fittings, think Bun Kee.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

The Group is a leading provider to the construction sector offering
a wide range of pipe (including copper tube, ductile iron and
steel pipes) related products, fittings, comprehensive services
and solutions to the contractors, designers, consultants and
government agencies in Hong Kong and Macau.

The Group's core business lies with our flagship subsidiary, Bun
Kee (International) Limited, a well-established company with a
long history. Starting from a small retail shop, we grew up to a
company listed in Hong Kong. We have become one-stop supplier
of a comprehensive range of pipes and fittings. The Group has
built a good reputation for the pipes and fittings business in Hong
Kong and Macau. We have established stable major customer and
supplier bases over the years.

The COVID-19 pandemic at the beginning of 2020 certainly
brought lingering uncertainties to the economic environment in
Hong Kong. Fortunately, the impact of COVID-19 was relatively
low on our core business. The Group remained in focus during
this pandemic period and continued to provide a stable supply
of pipes and fittings to our customers. During the year under
review, the Group's revenue contributor was mainly from sales of
pipes and fittings in Hong Kong and Macau. Although the market
competition was very keen, we continued to capture new sales
orders.

The halt to the business activities and construction sites in the
first half of 2020 resulted in some delays to deliver the pipes and
fittings to our customers. The situation improved in the second
half of the year and we saw signs of our sales recovery. However,
the overall sales was still affected by the epidemic. The Group
recorded revenue from continuing operation of approximately
HK$497.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: HK$527.6 million), a slight decrease of 5.7%. The profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company from continuing
and discontinued operations was HK$20.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$6.8 million), representing an
increase of 197.1%. Such profit increment was mainly attributable
to the improvement in gross profit margin due to the proper
planning of procurement strategy, cost-savings as a result of the
Group’s ongoing effort by adopting a cost optimization program
and subsidies obtained from the Hong Kong Government.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

A B o i B o e

For the year under review, other net gains from continuing
operation were about HK$9.5 million (2019: HK$0.6 million),
representing an increase of HK$8.9 million. The increase was
primarily attributable to subsidies granted from the Hong Kong
Government under the Anti-epidemic Fund and the Macau
Government.

The Group’s selling and distribution costs from continuing
operation decreased by 18.2% year-on-year from HK$20.3 million
in 2019 to HK$16.6 million in 2020. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease in promotion expenses, direct logistic
staff costs and overseas traveling expenses in tandem with the
decrease in sales. The Group's general and administrative expenses
from continuing operation amounted to approximately HK$101.0
million in 2020 (2019: HK$103.4 million), representing a decrease
of about 2.3% year-on-year. The decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in insurance, depreciation, entertainment and motor
vehicle running expenses. The operating expenses decreased was
partially due to the Group's continuous cost control efforts as well
as the slower business activities resulting from the cross-border
and COVID-19 control measures.

Finance costs from continuing operation mainly consisted of the
interest expenses on bank borrowings and lease liabilities. During
the year, the finance costs were HK$6.9 million (2019: HK$8.5
million), representing a decrease by about 18.8% over last year.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to the early settlement of
trust receipt loans and lower interest rates. Finance income which
was mainly from a loan to a related party, decreased by 19.4%
from HK$10.3 million in 2019 to HK$8.3 million in 2020 as the
downward adjustment of the interest rate of the related party
during the year. As finance income outpaced costs, we recorded a
net finance income of HK$1.4 million (2019: HK$1.9 million).

OUTLOOK

We are mindful of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on
the operating environment. The Group will expedite its digital
and data management as we believe that it will strengthen our
competitive advantage in the fast-changing business environment.
During such volatile times, we will continue to steer and manage
our operation and financial position prudently. With our long-
standing track record and your support, we can achieve better
results for the year of 2021 and beyond.

@ SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B h BB E R A 7

REBEFE @ FEESEEBNEMFREL
/9,500,000 7L (ZZ— 1L : 600,000/8
IT)  BEFIEHN498,900,00058 T o sz AN
TERESHEBSBTNHEIEES IR
FIERATHYE B o

REERFEESEEBNHEE RO HEKAABRZ
T — N4 #920,300,00078 TTIZE T #618.2%
E-F-FFN16,600,000/ T - EFdE
ZERANENE - EBRVRABREIZGI
EEBERARVAE - ERIREE— - K
EEBELEEFN —BRERITHRERN-Z
—ZEF5101,000,0008T (ZZE—LF
103,400,000/ 7T) * BREF R 2.3% ° FH
MNEZRAEAZRE - TE  BEEREHE
REMRLD - £EBEAROHIBL REZR
SBETENEITRANES] - AR BIEN20197E
AT B 150 IS e B B TS VR BN AR ©

SELEEBNP BN EEBBRITER
FHEBENFIESE - FA - BBKAEAE
6,900,000/ 7T (ZZF— .4 : 8,500,000/%8
T BEFERAD18.8% © B D EERNE
Wie R EERTETRBEERREEFRE -
PHEWAFTERKREBESERNF B U
A BRFRNTABESEROFE - Bify
- —F 110,300,000 T8 19.4%
ZE-T T H8,300,000/8 7T ° AT © M
RIABBABRER + BMESREFHBHERA
#1,400,0008 7L (ZZF— L5 : 1,900,000/%8
JT) °

A=

HAABE2019E MBS KIRTTHE LR
BOEE AREBINREFCRBENE
2 ARRMECERSEEZENRRRER
T ERERBRMNBEFES - HREBH
RH - RIS EEFED RS MER I
LEME BN - BERFIRANEEMR
P #F - B iPIREFE2021F RAR IS B 4F



Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2020, the cash and bank balances of the
Group were approximately HK$225.1 million (2019: HK$193.7
million) including pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$36.0 million (2019: HK$36.0 million). Basically the Group’s
working capital requirement has been financed by its internal
resources. The funds generated from operations and the available
banking facilities will enable the Group to meet its future working
capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had aggregate banking
facilities for trade finance of approximately HK$267.3 million
(2019: HK$290.7 million), approximately HK$61.0 million (2019:
HK$51.7 million) was utilised. The Group's total borrowings stood
at approximately HK$57.0 million (2019: HK$47.4 million), the
entire amount of borrowings for both years end will mature within
one year.

The entire amount of borrowings outstanding as at 31 December
2020 was approximately HK$57.0 million (2019: HK$47.4 million).
37% (2019: 35%) and 63% (2019: 65%) of borrowings were
subject to floating and fixed rates respectively.

The gearing ratio as measured by total bank borrowings to total
equity was approximately 10.2% as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
8.7%).

As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, the entire amount of the
Group's borrowings was denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group conducts its business transactions mainly in Hong Kong
dollar, Macau Pataca, Renminbi and United States dollar. In order
to manage foreign exchange risk, the Group has been closely
monitoring its foreign currency exposure and will arrange for any
hedging facilities if necessary.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, certain bank deposits and certificate of
deposit held by subsidiaries of the Group with aggregate carrying
amounts of approximately HK$36.0 million (2019: HK$36.0
million) and HK$10.0 million (2019: HK$10.0 million) respectively
were pledged to banks for banking facilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2019 and 2020.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments of
HK$1.8 million in respect of Enterprise Resources Planning system
contracted for but not provided for in consolidated financial
statements (2019: Nil).

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 168
employees (2019: 169). Total employee benefit expenses for
the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately HK$64.6
million (2019: HK$65.2 million).

Remuneration policy is reviewed annually and certain staff
members are entitled to sales commission. In addition to the basic
salaries and contributions to the mandatory provident fund, the
Group also pays discretionary bonus and provides staff with other
benefits including medical scheme to the employees in Hong
Kong. The Group contributes to an employee pension scheme
established by the PRC Government which undertakes to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group in Mainland China. The Group adopted a
share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to motivate the eligible directors and employees of the
Group in recognition of their contributions to the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lai Fulin, aged 55, acted as an Executive Director of the
Company from October 2009 to May 2017 and continued to sit
on the senior management team of the Group thereafter. Mr.
Lai rejoined the Board as an Executive Director of the Company
on 27 November 2017 and was appointed as the Chairman of
the Board with effect from 30 March 2018. He is also a member
of the Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of
Remuneration Committee of the Company. In addition, Mr. Lai
is the Head of Production & Purchasing of the Group and holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lai has
over 20 years of experience in the banking sector, investment
management and general management of companies in China.
Mr. Lai worked in the Bank of China in Shenzhen from 1986 to
2001. From 1995 to 2001, he was the deputy general manager
of a subsidiary of Bank of China dealing with businesses in the
securities industry. During the period from 2002 to 2008, Mr. Lai
was the general manager of FYITERE HEHEEZEBR AT
(Shenzhen Huaao Guanli Technologies Company Limited*). Mr.
Lai holds a certificate of graduation in Chinese Language from %
IZRE 28T (Shenzhen Institute of Education*).

Mr. Lai is the younger brother of Mr. Lai Guanglin, the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

* For identification purpose only

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, aged 56, was appointed as Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in May 2009.
Mr. Yu is responsible for managing overall daily operations of
the Group and the implementation of the Group’s development
strategies.

Mr. Yu has over 20 years of experience in investment
management, investment banking and general management of
listed companies. Mr. Yu began his career at Mackenzie Financial
Corporation in Toronto, Canada as an investment analyst in 1989
and since then, he has served several major financial corporations
including J.P. Morgan, Deutsche Bank and CITIC Capital. In
addition to his vast investment banking and management
experience, Mr. Yu has also managed listed companies such
as New World Cyberbase Limited and Asia Logistics Holdings
Limited in Hong Kong. During his past career, Mr. Yu has focused
on direct investment and mergers and acquisitions activities in
sectors including construction materials, infrastructure, energy,
technologies, media and financial services.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

HEHARBERANBZERE

Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in English Literature from
the Beijing Foreign Studies University, a Master of arts degree in
Education from the University of Toronto and a master’s degree
in business administration from the University of Western Ontario,
Canada.

Mr. Yu is a director of King Jade Holdings Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company which has an interest in the shares of
the Company that is required to be disclosed under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, aged 53, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in February
2009. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member of Australia
CPA and Australian Institute of Banking and Finance. He holds a
master of commerce degree, specializing in banking and finance
from the University of New South Wales. With more than 20 years
of experience in PricewaterhouseCoopers and Ernst and Young,
Mr. Wong specializes in the area of auditing banks and listed
companies. Mr. Wong is the chief financial officer of CA Cultural
Technology Group Limited (formerly known as China Animation
Characters Company Limited) (Stock code: 1566, a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited “HKSE")
and serving as independent non-executive director of Ping An
Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 231, a company
listed on HKSE) and PT International Development Corporation
Limited (Stock code: 372, a company listed on HKSE).

Mr. Chen Wei Wen, aged 52, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2010. He is also
a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Chen holds
a Bachelor of Business (Accounting) from Monash University,
Australia. Mr. Chen worked as a general manager of Guangzhou
Futian Trading Company Ltd (EMTEHRE SER A7) from
1997 to 2005. Since November 2004, Mr. Chen was appointed as
chief operating officer of Guangzhou Kanxin Polymer Technology
Co., Ltd (BMMELED FEHEERZAR]) which is an affiliated
company of Guangzhou Futian Trading Company Ltd (BT =
NE 5B A R]). Mr. Chen was also appointed as director and
general manager of Fuda Enterprises Limited (& MEDEARA
A)) since February 1998.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Guan Zhigiang, aged 58, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2016.
He is also the Chairman of Remuneration Committee, a
member of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Guan holds a bachelor of Agronomy from
Huazhong Agricultural University and a master degree in business
administration from Southwestern University of Finance. During
the period from 1984 to 1996, Mr. Guan had successively worked
in the Ministry of Agriculture of the People’s Republic of China
and the State Planning Commission. He subsequently joined
the Agricultural Development Bank of China and held various
senior management positions and was granted a qualification of
senior economist from the bank. From February 2002 to March
2003, Mr. Guan served as the general manager in New China
Life Insurance Company Ltd, Jinan branch. From March 2003
to November 2005, he worked in Yeland Group Co. Ltd. (now
known as HNA Investment Group Co., Ltd), a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and was appointed as the chairman
of its group’s real estate company. Since 2005, Mr. Guan has
established an investment advisory firm and invested in a number
of enterprises which engaged in various fields including mining,
energy and biotechnology, etc., and acted as a director in those
enterprises. Mr. Guan is currently the vice chairman of ¥/ T H{%
EYEHE B R AR (Zhejiang Ecopro Biotech Company, Ltd.*) and
a director of EBRITBER R LEZEBR AT (Huoerguosi
Poly Entertainment Culture Industry Co., Ltd*). He has extensive
experience in finance, investment and corporate management.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

HEHARBERANBZERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Wai Koon, Timothy, aged 51, was appointed as
Chief Operating Officer of the Company in January 2015. Mr.
Chow is responsible for directing, administering and co-ordinating
the operational activities of the Group. He is also responsible for
recommending and developing strategies, goals and policies of
the Group.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chow devoted almost 20 years
to Hewlett-Packard group (“HP"”), a leading global IT provider of
products, technologies, software, solutions and services. While at
HP, Mr. Chow held several senior positions in sales, marketing,
business planning and finance in the Asia Pacific region including
China, Australia and Singapore.

Mr. Chow has extensive experience in sales and marketing in
the Asia Pacific region, particularly China, across consumer,
commercial and enterprise customers. In addition, Mr. Chow
has robust knowledge of end-to-end systems from research
and development, manufacturing and distribution to channel,
communication and customer support.

Mr. Chow holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from the Macquarie Graduate School of Management, Australia,
and a Bachelor’s Degree of Accountancy from the Nanyang
Technological University, Singapore.

Mr. Cheng Siu Kwan, aged 51, joined the Company as the
Financial Controller in December 2012 and has been appointed
as the Company Secretary of the Company in February 2013.
Mr. Cheng is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Cheng held various finance positions at a number of companies
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and has over
26 years of experience in auditing, finance and accounting.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Chan Yuk Fan, aged 57, joined the Group in 1982 and has
held a number of leadership roles in the Group’s retail, project
sales and procurement division. Ms. Chan currently is the Deputy
Managing Director of Bun Kee (International) Limited, the pipe
trading subsidiary of the Group and is mainly responsible for
the leadership, control and long-term business development of
the Company. She has extensive experience and knowledge in
managing a successful piping distribution operation. She is a
member of Central and Western District Fight Crime Committee,
a member of Lions Club and a council member of The Hong Kong
Air Conditioning and Refrigeration Association Limited.

Mr. Lai Kui Chung, aged 63, joined the Group in 1979 and is
the Warehouse Director of the pipe trading subsidiary, Bun Kee
(International) Limited. Mr. Lai is responsible for the warehouse
and transportation activities of the Group. He has over 41 years
of experience in supervising warehouse and transportation
operations. Mr. Lai holds a Certificate in Store Supervision from a
technical institute.

Mr. Ku Chun Ming, aged 55, joined the Group in 1993 and is the
Sales Director of the pipe trading subsidiary, Bun Kee (International)
Limited. Mr. Ku is responsible for the Group’s sales operations,
new product development and promotion activities including the
exhibitions and seminars. He has over 34 years of experience in
sales and marketing activities.
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Corporate Governance Report
BRI

Softpower International Limited (the “Company”) is committed
to maintain a high standard of corporate governance. The board
of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and management
maintain and enhance the policies and practices of the Company
on a timely, transparent, effective and reasonable manner, so as
to maintain good, solid and reasonable corporate governance. The
Company believes that good corporate governance is not only in
the interest of shareholders and investors but also in the interest
of the Company. The Company will continue to raise the standard
to formalize the best practice of corporate governance as far as
we could.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as stated in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout
the year ended 31 December 2020.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rule (the “Model Code”). Having made specific
enquiry with the directors of the Company (“Directors”), all
Directors confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five Directors,
including two executive Directors, Mr. Lai Fulin (the Chairman
of the Board) and Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (the Chief Executive
Officer); and three independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Mr. Guan
Zhigiang, one of whom namely, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
has appropriate professional accounting experience and expertise.
Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT" of this Annual Report.

Throughout the year, the Board has at least one-third in number
of its members comprising independent non-executive Directors
under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a service contract with
the Company and appointed for a term of one year. All Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the bye-laws
of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all the independent
non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that they are
independent.

To the best knowledge of the Company, except that Mr. Lai Fulin is
the younger brother of Mr. Lai Guanglin, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, there is no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship) among
members of the Board.

The Board has balance of skills, knowledge and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business and to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The Board
membership is covered by professionally qualified and widely
experienced personnel to bring in valuable contributions and
different professional advices and consultancy for development of
the Company. All Directors have separate and independent access
to the advice and services of the senior management and the
company secretary with a view to ensuring the board procedures,
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. The principal
functions of the Board are to supervise the management of the
business and affairs; to approve the strategic plans, investment
and funding decision; to review the Group's financial performance
and operating initiatives.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for formulating
overall strategy and polices, monitoring and controlling the
performance of the Group. In addition to its overall supervisory
role, the Board also retains specific responsibilities such as
approving financial accounts, approving annual budget,
recommending dividend payments, approving policies relating to
the Board’s compliance, etc. whilst managing the Group’s day-
to-day operations is the responsibility of the management of
the Group (the “Management”) such as implementing internal
control, business strategies and plans set by the Board, etc..
When the Board delegates certain aspects of its management and
administration functions to the Management, it has given clear
directions as to the powers of the Management.
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Corporate Governance Report
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on appointment so as to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities under the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations.

In addition, all Directors are provided with monthly updates on
the Company'’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the code
provision A.6.5 of the Code on Directors’ training. During the
Year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars and/or reading materials on
the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training to the Company.

Name of Directors EEpR
Mr. Lai Fulin FETRBAE A
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng BRESE
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson mUELEE
Mr. Chen Wei Wen BRIE X Se 4
Mr. Guan Zhigiang EEREE
Notes: M -

C: Corporate Governance C: pEER
F: Finance and Accounting F: BB REs
L: Listing Rules Updates L: EisRAIEE R

R: Other Relevant Regulatory Updates R: HABEERNER
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Corporate Governance Report

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The position of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are held by separate individuals. The role
of the Chairman is separated from that of the Chief Executive
Officer. Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce their
independence and accountability.

Mr. Lai Fulin takes up the role of providing leadership for the
Board and ensures that the Board works effectively and discharges
its responsibility properly. With the support of executive Directors
and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings
and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
The Chairman also ensures that good corporate governance
practice is in force from time to time, and all key issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
is responsible for managing overall daily operations of the Group,
the implementation of the Group’s development strategies and
plans and to perform other responsibilities as assigned by the
Board.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year,
additional meetings are convened when deemed necessary by
the Board. Board members are provided with complete, adequate
and timely information to allow the Directors to fulfill their duties
properly. In addition, Directors have full access to information
on the Group and independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. In addition, the Chairman and
non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) meet at least once every year without the presence of
executive Directors.

During the year, the Board met regularly and held six meetings.
Notices and board papers were given to all Directors prior to the
board meetings in accordance with the Code. The Chairman and
non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) met once without the presence of executive Directors.

(e J-giit ity

IENEFITENAE

EFRTERARAEBRTEOBILST
RALHE - EROBES R EERT
B - BMS ITADMARG AN BT REE
p o

EREBLILETIESE RAEAG  BRE
ERAMEEIEERTERE - ERTT
EERATMEBYT  TEFERFAEE
EONEFTEERLIRHNERETEEF
B WERESRDAIENER o T/FEINHE
RIRERITER ZERERER - UK
EFeNERAMAEREH -

ARBBEFEATEALEREABTEER
EEERTEFLATARENERR
atEl URHITHEEERIRMER -

ES
IS4

ExgEa

ExexHRTE%  MEBFKIBTARX
% MNERREFESARBINGS -
ETeXBEERHTE  ROKEREF -
UBRERRZERTREZRBE - 1IN &
EARERAFERNSEEERN BN
BEXER - AN EFEEBFRIFNTES (B
EBERITES) BITEL —IREANTE
FHFENEE -

REA EFEEHEHBERBITTARE
& MBITEFTEEFA  CRETAZR
EREESFZELBARGEX M - TFHE
FRTER(BREBUIFATESR) 8177 —
REBHITEFTHRNE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % #§ e



Corporate Governance Report

EE R

Meetings held in 2020 R-ZB-ZFERTNER

Details of the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Board ENESR_T_ZFHFNESEEHE -
committee meetings and general meetings (including the annual EZEE L8R MRFEARE (BRERRE
general meeting and special general meeting) respectively held in BERE RIRRERNARE) 8L E 150
2020 are set out as below: T e

Attended/Eligible to attend

HERE, REEHERE
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Ezg ENZER RRZE] HMWEE"
g3 -] F - BRAE
Number of Meetings Held SRETRY 6 3 1 1 2
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lai Fulin WBERTE 6/6 - 11 1/1 22
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng MRERAE 6/6 - - - 22
Independent Non-executive ~ BIFHTEE
Directors
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson ~ ZBAEEAE 6/6 3/3 - - 22
Mr. Chen Wei Wen BREXEE 6/6 373 11 1/1 22
Mr. Guan Zhigiang bt 6/6 33 11 1/1 22
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BOARD COMMITTEES

A number of Board committee, including audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee, have
been established by the Board to strengthen its functions and
to enhance its expertise. All committees have been formed with
specific written terms of reference which deals clearly with the
respective committees’ authorities and duties.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three members including one executive Director, namely
Mr. Lai Fulin and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Mr. Guan Zhigiang. It is chaired
by Mr. Guan Zhigiang.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
are as follows:

(@) To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(0 To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments (including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment); and

(d) To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors.

The remuneration package of executive Directors is determined
by reference to their duties and responsibilities, experience and
the prevailing market conditions. The remuneration package of
individual executive Directors includes salary, discretionary bonus
and share-based payment. Details of the Directors’ fee and other
emoluments of the Directors of the Company are set out in Note
32 to the financial statements.
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The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it
will review the proposals made by the management on the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management,
and make recommendations to the Board. The Board will have
final authority to approve the recommendations made by the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during 2020, the
following major matters were reviewed and discussed in the
meetings and recommended to the Board for approval:

e To consider the bonus arrangement of the Directors and senior
management of the Company; and

e To review the new service contracts entered into between the
Company and non-executive Directors.

Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the Code, the details
remuneration of the senior management of the Company by band
for the year ended 31 December 2020 was set out in Note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three members including an executive Director, Mr. Lai
Fulin, and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chen
Wei Wen and Mr. Guan Zhigiang. It is chaired by Mr. Lai Fulin, the
Chairman of the Board.

In August 2013, the Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy.
Such policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on Board.
With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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In December 2018, the Company adopted the Nomination Policy.
According to the policy, the Nomination Committee (“NC")
will consider candidates recommended by shareholders in the
same manner as candidates recommended to the NC from other
sources. In its evaluation of director candidates, including the
members of the Board eligible for re-election, the NC will consider
(1) The current size and composition of the Board and the needs
of the Board and the respective committees of the Board; (2)
Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service; and (3) Other factors that
the NC may consider appropriate.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(@) To review the structure, size and composition (board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) To identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board;

(c) To review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
disclose the Board Diversity Policy or its summary in the
corporate governance report of the Company including
the measurable objectives set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and progress made towards achieving these
measurable objectives;

(d) To review the policy for the nomination of Directors
(“Nomination Policy”) as appropriate. The Nomination Policy
shall set out, inter alia, the nomination procedures and
process and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship;
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(e) To assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(f)  To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting during 2020, the
following major issues were reviewed and discussed in the
meeting:

° To review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

e To review the Board Diversity Policy;

e To make recommendation to the Board for approval the
revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee;
and

e To evaluate and make recommendation as to the
gualification and experience of the directors who were
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the 2020
annual general meeting.

As at the date of this report, Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Yee
Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Mr. Guan Zhigiang. It is
chaired by Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson who has the appropriate
professional qualifications, accounting and financial management
expertise.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

(@ To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

(b) To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them;
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() To review the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems; and

(d) To discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during 2020 and the
following major matters were reviewed and discussed in the
meetings:

e To review the annual results of 2019 and the interim results
of 2020 and making recommendation to the Board for
approval;

e To make recommendation on the reappointment of the
auditor;

e To review the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function and their training programme and related
budget;

e To review the risk management and internal control systems;

e To approve the auditor’s fees for audit of 2020 financial
statements; and

e  To discuss the audit service plan of 2020.

The Board adopted the written terms of reference on corporate
governance functions in March 2012 so as to assist the Board
performing corporate governance functions. The terms of
reference of the Board in respect of corporate governance
functions are summarized as follows:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
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(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and its
disclosure requirements in Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company'’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuing
professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code,
and the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the Board
in discharge of its corporate governance functions.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by the auditor generally depends on the
scope and volume of the auditor’s work. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the remuneration to the auditor of the Company
in respect of audit services was HK$1,020,000 and fees related
to taxation services and other non-audit services amount to
HK$89,500 and HK$80,000 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The senior
management provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial information and position of the Company.

The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the
accounts of the Company. The responsibilities of the auditor
of the Company with respect to the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 56
to 64.
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GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of
risk management and internal controls within the Group and for
reviewing their effectiveness. The systems of risk management
and internal control are designed to facilitate effective and
efficient operations, to safeguard assets and to ensure the quality
of internal and external reporting and compliance control and risk
management functions. It is also designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that material misstatement or loss
can be avoided, and to manage and minimize risks of failure in
operation systems.

The Group has set up a risk management system to provide
directions in identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks and is reviewed at least on an annual basis. The senior
management of the Group identifies risks that would adversely
affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses
and prioritizes the identified risks according to a set of standard
criteria.

The Board has engaged an independent professional advisor
to perform ongoing monitoring of the risk management and
internal control review to assess the effectiveness of the financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions of the Company and the Group’s major subsidiaries on
a rotation basis.

Risk management report and internal control report are submitted
to the Audit Committee at least once a year. The Board, through
the Audit Committee, had performed annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management system and internal
control system, including the scope on risk management and
internal control systems, result of internal audit work and status of
compliance control.
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At the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 19 March 2021,
the independent professional advisor reported their review work
for the year ended 31 December 2020 performed in accordance
with the detailed risk-based internal control review plan which
was approved by the Audit Committee and the risk management
report was also circulated to the Audit Committee for review. The
Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management system
and internal control system for the year ended 31 December
2020. The Audit Committee members, together with the senior
management, have also reviewed, considered and discussed
the risk management system, all findings relating to the internal
control system and recommendations for improvement. The Board
considers the risk management system and internal control system
of the Group were effective and adequate during the year.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and was satisfied with the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Cheng Siu Kwan,
who is also the Financial Controller of the Company. Mr. Cheng
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He fulfills the requirement under
Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary is responsible for providing secretarial
services to the Board and ensuring the operation of the Company
is properly complied with Hong Kong listed companies’ regulatory
requirements as well as enhancing its corporate governance
standards. All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
Company Secretary is also the secretary of each of Board
committees. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of all Board
committees are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
for inspection by the Directors at all times.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies Act and the
bye-law 62 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, the shareholder(s) of
the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may request the Board to convene a
special general meeting. The requisition must state the purposes
of the meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company and its head
office and principal place of business in Hong Kong for the
attention of Company Secretary and may consist of several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.
If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar. Other
shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong as set
out in the “Corporate Information” section of this Annual Report
for the attention of Company Secretary.

Pursuant to Sections 79(1) and 79(2) of the Bermuda Companies
Act, on the requisition in writing of either (i) any number of
members of the Company representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the members having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requisition relates; or (i) not less than one hundred members,
the Company shall, at the expense of the requisitionists unless the
Company otherwise resolves:

(@) to give to members of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at that meeting;
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(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at that meeting.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall
be deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution
or circulating any necessary statement, at the registered office of
the Company and its head office and principal place of business in
Hong Kong in the case of:

(i)  arequisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the
meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with
the necessary procedures.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is obliged to provide regular, effective and fair
communication with the shareholders and the investors of the
Company. Latest information is conveyed to the Shareholders and
the investors of the Company on a timely basis. A Shareholder
Communication Policy (the “Policy”) was adopted by the
Company in March 2012. The Policy aims to set out the provisions
with the objective of ensuring that the latest information of
the Company is conveyed to the Shareholders and investors on
a timely basis. The Company uses a range of communication
tools to ensure the Shareholders and the investors are kept well
informed of key business imperatives.
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Corporate Governance Report

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders and the
investors mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim
report and annual report), annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as by making
available all the disclosures submitted to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) and its
corporate communications and other corporate publications on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or
to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their
behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings. Shareholders’
views on matters that affect the Company are welcome by the
Board at shareholders’ meetings. Shareholders of the Company
are notified of shareholders’ meetings through notices and reports
or circulars sent to them. Each item of special business in the
notice of the meeting is accompanied, where appropriate, by an
explanation for the proposed resolution. A separate resolution
is proposed by the chairman of the meetings in respect of each
separate issue, including the re-election of Directors.

The Chairman of the Board and Chairmen of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee or failing him/her, his/ner duly appointed delegate, are
available at the annual general meeting to answer questions with
regard to the work of these committees.

Save as provided under the Listing Rules, resolutions put to vote
at the general meetings of the Company (other than procedural
matters) are taken by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of
the poll are explained to the shareholders at the commencement
of each general meeting, and questions from shareholders
regarding the voting procedures are answered. The poll results are
posted on the respective websites of the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange on the same day of the poll.
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Corporate Governance Report
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INVESTOR RELATIONS REERBR

The Company maintains a website (www.softpower.hk) where AR B3 A #8uh (www.softpower.hk) © Z#]
information and updates on the list of directors and their roles RRBZEHEMMNE B PTIRE 5
and functions, constitutional documents, terms of reference of uh(www.hkexnews.hk) )3 > EE H B EHH
the Board committees, procedures for shareholders to propose Akt J|EXH EEBETZES
a person for election as a director, announcements, circulars BESEE  BRRERKEEEENET 2
and reports, etc. released to the HKExnews' website (www. £ CBERNRES  UREMER - AAF

hkexnews.hk) and other information are posted. Information on Wt E 2 BAMASTRER - NAFHEM 2
the Company’s website will be updated from time to time. A (AR E - BRI EERRE T
dedicated email address (ir@softpower.hk) for investor enquiry is (ir@softpower.hk) °

set out in the “Contact Us” section on the Company’s website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS BEXH

During the year, there was no significant change to the RER - KRB BEX A BEREE) -
Company’s constitutional documents.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure
in presenting their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 65.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2020.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In accordance with the relevant provision of the Bye-Laws of
the Company: 1. The Company in general meeting may declare
dividends in any currency but no dividends shall exceed the
amount recommended by the Board. 2. The Board may subject to
Bye-Laws from time to time pay to the shareholders such interim
dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the position
of the Company. 3. The Board may also pay half-yearly or at
other suitable intervals to be settled by it any dividend which may
be payable at a fixed rate if the Board is of the opinion that the
profits justify the payment. 4. No dividend shall be declared or
paid and no distribution of contributed surplus made otherwise
than in accordance with the Statutes. No dividend shall be paid
otherwise than out of profits available for distribution. 5. The
Company may distribute dividends by way of cash or scrip.

The Company’s ability to distribute dividends will depend on,
among others, the operating results, cash flow, financial condition
and capital requirements of the Group and the interests of
the shareholders of the Company. The Company’s distribution
of dividends shall also comply with any restrictions under the
Bermuda Companies Act and the Bye-Laws of the Company.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual Report.

The details of financial risk management of the Group are set out
in Note 3 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the section
headed “Five-Year Financial Summary” of this Annual Report.

The compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group is set out in this “Report of
Directors” and the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this Annual Report.

The Group is committed in promoting the sustainable
development of both the environment and the society.

We believe it is more blessed to give than to receive. As such, we
support and encourage our employees to participate in community
service activities. With the support from the management team,
our core business company, Bun Kee (International) Limited
("Bun Kee") is committed to participate and support social
services activities. In this regard, Bun Kee has awarded the
Caring Company logo in recognition of our corporate social
responsibility’s participation and commitment. We also believe
in the ripple effect which those people, whom we helped, will in
turn help others who are in need.

With regards to environmental policy, we pay a great deal
of attention to promoting environmental protection. We will
integrate environmental awareness in our daily operations
including:

e Reduce electricity consumption, improve energy efficiency,
use of energy-efficient products to replace the appliances
and equipment;

e Turn off lightings, air-conditioners and electrical appliances in
offices after working hours, or when rooms not being used,
for instance, the conference rooms;
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e  Use electronic means for communications internally and with
external parties;

e Reduce the need to copy and print. Use of recycled
paper, copy and print on both sides of the paper, where
appropriate; and

e Re-use of office supplies (such as single-sided paper, paper
clips, envelopes, file folders, paper bags, plastic bags).

The Group understands and supports that employees, customers,
suppliers and business partners, investors and shareholders are
vital to our sustainable and stable development.

(i) Employees

The Group is an equal opportunity employer. Our employee
handbook outlines terms and conditions of employment,
code of conduct and employee benefits. We promote
harmony and respect in our workplace. Employees are one
of our most important assets. To that end, we provide self-
improvement and advancement opportunities as well as a
safe workplace in order to retain high calibre employees. The
Group values the well-being and health of our employees
and therefore provides medical insurance coverage and
benefits to our employees. In addition, we will organize staff
gathering quarterly and annual dinner, all management will
also participate to maintain good relations with employees
and promote two-way communication. The Company
will conduct staff appraisal annually, and also provide
exit interviews for the outgoing employees. We adopt an
open policy to allow employees at any time, by email or in
person to the department managers or Human Resources
department to express their views.

(ii) Customers

We provide high quality products to our customers constantly
as it is the best way to retain customers and business growth.
Our sales team will visit customers regularly to keep abreast
of new opportunities and challenges. All opinions received
will be prompt handled by the relevant team. We grow up
together with most of our customers in past years and we
have established solid and long-term relationships with them.
We also have built up a trust and good reputation among
our customers over the years.
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(iii) Suppliers and business partners

For our suppliers and business partners, we strive to maintain
a stable and long-term relationship with them. The Group's
procurement is based on our stringent suppliers’ selection
criteria. To ensure the highest quality of products, the Group
has requested the suppliers to provide product certification.
In addition, we engaged highly reputable independent
laboratories for quality testing to ensure that the products
comply with local and international standards. Our sales
team and procurement team will have regular visit to our
suppliers’ factories for inspection. In order to allow our
customers to have direct feedback channel to the suppliers,
we will also organize some factory tours to the customers.
This can let them better understanding of the production
flow and products quality affirmation in order to win the

utmost confidence of customers.

(iv) Investors and shareholders

For the investors and shareholders, we maintain a high
level of transparency and communicate with them through
meetings, announcements and circulars. The Company
maintains a website, the information will be updated from
time to time. In addition, a dedicated email address is set out
in the “Contact Us” section of the Company’s website for

investor and general public inquiry.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2020

amounted to approximately HK$101.5 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set

out in Note 23 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020

are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

@ SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B h BB E R 2 7

(iii) RERFEE S EEFF

HRBEMNHEANRGAERME - &
1PIZR 0 B4R IR FF — (BT E MR HRY
BAR - AEBENRBEENRFIBRKD
HERBKERER - BTHRARSNEMR
HE  AKECDEREREERERD
REE ° WO - HFIEEREE RFrEL
BERE  ETEERA - UERERS
BAMAMBIFRARZE - T IR0 3H & R
REEGETEARIHEAN TRETE
£ o ﬁﬁ?%?%%ﬁﬁﬁ’]gﬁ*ﬁ;%ﬁjéﬁf
FEERBERGHER  BHMAES
RN — L TR 7%}5%311
THRHEENEEIFNIHERREN
BE - #BARBREPHEAELD

(iv) REZFRR

FEREEMBRA®E @ ROEESER

E - 2@}5@3% CNE B R BB

B ANAIRA—EHY - Bk LW

ié%‘ﬂ@?\ﬁ%%%ﬁ o fbAN © AN A AL

E’JFHW%WFWF%E REHRT —EEBH
B EENRRATRAEEEH

%ﬂ o

EIRG: 334

b_/\\ i—?g—'— H + EZ'K/L\\—JZ—J-T/\
DIk FEE 101,500,000 7T °

M-  BERRE

AEEZE  BERREZEEHFBHN

SRR MIFEI3 ©

&N

ARRZ AR EF BN RAM T
23

B8
AEER-_F-_FFt_A=+t—HZ#EE
B %XECE!M%%%WEEZS o



PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year, the Company repurchased 1,004,000 shares
of the Company with internal resources on the Stock Exchange.
The highest and lowest price paid for all such purchases was
HK$0.088 and HK$0.085 respectively. The aggregate amount
(excluding related expenses) paid for such repurchased shares was
approximately HK$86,444 which was deducted from shareholders’
equity. Such shares repurchased have been fully cancelled as at 31
December 2020. The repurchases effected by the Board are aimed
at enhancing earnings per share of the Company which are in the
interests of shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the Bermuda Companies Act, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2020 are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Fulin (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Mr. Chen Wei Wen
Mr. Guan Zhigiang

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws of the Company,
Mr. Lai Fulin and Mr. Guan Zhigiang will retire from office by
rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re- election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers that
all of them are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has
entered in to any service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their respective associates has an
interest in any business which competes or may compete with the
business in which the Group engaged.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme approved by the shareholders of the
Company on 24 June 2004 (the “2004 Scheme”) which expired
on 23 June 2014. Thereafter, no further options will be granted
under the 2004 Scheme but the subsisting options granted
thereunder prior to the expiry date will continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the terms of the 2004 Scheme.
As at 31 December 2020, all share options granted under prior
to the 2004 Scheme lapsed. The new share option scheme as
mentioned below will be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing from the adoption.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 21 May
2015, the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of
a new share option scheme (the “2015 Scheme") under which the
directors of the Company may grant options to eligible persons
to subscribe for the Company’s shares subject to the terms and
conditions as stipulated therein. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the 2015 Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10
years from the date of its adoption.

@ SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B h BB E R 2 7

BINHITES 2B IER

AARCRESBYIFNTESRELTR
AIE3BEREIFL Bt FEMHR -
AAB TR AEBEIBULNE -

EERSEREEAEBCEBE

EELSREBABZEERNAEHRNE
ERBRERABZBEIREKE

EERBSHN

RARBAEETZRRBFAS LHEEE
BETZESMERARRASELMAMER
AR T AR —FRBEHANEE CEERE
BRON MR L 2 B RIEE X -

ESNHFUERE 2B

EERBERAZHBEARERR EALE
TRk A] BERE AR 5 (A A5 M2

B ERTE

ARBBERR —FZTHF A - TEOAHE
ZEREAE((—ZTOFAEDER-F
—ERAZT=HER © 1R - BERE
—“TTFAEIBREERE - ERNERR
HIRRE - TMEAE 1%?’)(&&2%1&%
RAABERL A FIATE - BE-_ZT_TF
TZRA=+—R " FEREBE-ZZ EE‘JrilJ
RIER K HBIREE RRK o Tl e BB A
Ef%ﬂ@%%mtﬁﬁxﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬂ-i

R-ZFE-—AFAA -+ —HARTZARE
RIBFRE L AR BRI AR W%ﬁﬁﬁﬂx
st ([ —F—RaF5t3)) - & - AR
EXAMAEBALTROBRE - AR ﬁ§$
RERD - AR —FE-RFAERE K
AREMRIFFIARR © Br B TTBUHRIERTSN © =
T—RFEEH B EFRA B R+ FHIRE
HERERRL ©



The details of 2004 Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose

The purpose of the 2004 Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible means of giving incentive and/
or rewarding the participants.

(b) Participants of the Scheme

(9

The Board may offer to grant options to the participants
which means (i) any Director (including any executive
director, non-executive director or independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group; (ii)
any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of any
member of the Group; (iii) any consultant, adviser,
supplier, customer or sub-contractor of the Group; and
(iv) any other person whatsoever from time to time
determined by the Board as having contributed to the
development, growth or benefit of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue under
the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of the general meeting of the Company approving the
Scheme. The number of shares may be refreshed by
the approval of the shareholders and the refreshed limit
of the number of shares must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as the date of the
approval of the refreshed limit. The maximum number
of shares of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.
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(d)

(e)

(7

(9)

All share options granted under the 2004 scheme were
lapsed in May 2020. As at 31 December 2020, there
was no share available for issue upon exercise of all
options which were granted under the 2004 Scheme
in aggregate (31 December 2019: 1,000,000 shares,
representing 0.075% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue).

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including exercised or outstanding options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of grant.

Minimum period for options to be held

No minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised unless otherwise specified in
the relevant offer letter.

Period and payment on acceptance of options

Pursuant to the Scheme, HK$10 is payable by the
grantee to the Company on acceptance of the option
within 28 days from the date of grant of the option.

Basis determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Scheme shall be
a price determined by the Board and notified to the
participants and shall be at least the highest of (a)
the closing price of the shares as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) daily quotation sheet on the date on which
the options are deemed to be granted and accepted
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme (the
“Commencement Date”), which must be a business
day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding
the Commencement Date; and (c) the nominal value of
the shares.
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(h) Life of the Scheme (h) FrE|ZEMHE
Subject to earlier termination by the Company at BRARBINIRRAE FHRESS
general meeting or by the Board, the life of the Scheme RPN - 5HEI 2 BB
commenced from 24 June 2004, date of adoption, and TOFERNAZTNA FANEE) B
ended on 23 June 2014. E_E-NERAT=BRIE-
Details of options granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled REEA - BIEFTEIRE 1768 -
and outstanding under the Scheme during the year are KN GRS R ARITR R IRE 2
as follows: BT -
Movement during the year
A0 )
Held as at 1 Held as at 31
1 January1 December
Exercise Price 2020 2020
HS  RZZZE  Grantedand A-E-2f
Name of Director Date of grant i -A-H accepted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled t=A=t-H
ESf? Rt B BT 58 EREYESH Bfif BAM B B
Chen Wei Wen e/ 552010 083 1,000,000 = = (1,000,000) - =
B
Note: Kt -
The options granted to these grantees are vested in stages and be BT ZEREANBRESSPEREE - Wik
exercised in the following manner: THRATEE
Maximum percentage of options exercisable Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options
{52 BARERm B A FIE AR AR E B 3 b 2 HARR
20% 5/11/2010 - 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2011 — 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2012 — 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2013 - 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2014 — 4/5/2020

Details of the fair value of options granted under the Scheme BB Zz—_ET-_TFE+-_A=+—HIEE
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and the accounting BEGTEREEREN A ERE EERE
policy adopted for the options are set out in Note 23 and Note 2 BEETERMFE D RSN I w23
to the financial statements respectively. R HtEE2 o
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The details of 2015 Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose

The purpose of the 2015 Scheme is to recognize
and acknowledge the contributions or potential
contributions made or to be made by the participants
to the Group, to motivate the participants to optimize
their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the
Group, and to maintain or attract business relationship
with the participants whose contributions are or may be
beneficial to the growth of the Group.

(b) Participants

(9

The Board may offer to grant options to the participants
which means (i) any director (including any executive
director, non-executive director or independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group;
(i) any employee (whether in full time or part-time
employment) of any member of the Group; (iii) any
consultant, adviser, supplier, customer or subcontractor
of the Group, and (iv) any other person whatsoever
from time to time determined by the Board as having
contributed to the development, growth or benefit of
the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue under
the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of the general meeting of the Company approving the
Scheme. The number of shares may be refreshed by
the approval of the shareholders and the refreshed limit
of the number of shares must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as the date of the
approval of the refreshed limit. The maximum number
of shares of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.

@ SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B h BB E R A 7

BT HEEIFELT -

(a)

(b)

(9,

=)

TR EEERBREES
HEUAREEC L RBIEHD
BRVEERRL - B2 EENUR
ERBREDRE /AR EEGHER
& WHBRES| E2EEN R
MR HEBEMRHEEEFNR
REEWER -

BHE

EXeAR2EERLBRE -
28ETRE)AEBEEAKE 21E
MEZF(BREIMANITES  JFH
TEEFHBIUIFNTES) : (DA
SEERKE ZEREE (TREB
2REGERRY) ¢ (i ARETAR
B BAA - HER  BPFINE
B RivVBEEZTEEEREAE
Bz#R  BEINSIELERMZ
ERIEMAL -

RBaA BT HRRITZRGEE

RITERIEE B R AR G TR b
BRI TR 2 P
A 1T 2 BRID4EE - & HTBiEB
BARRRERAG EHETEE
HE TR AEZ10%  BRHEE
AR R HT - T 2R
M8 ERTNMSHBIBIER T LR
ZBHARRBEEITRAZ10% ©
EITEEARIR T B AR B A E A
BREZEEEMERITEZE
PREMAET I ROEE - &3
FTEBATEEETROHERZ
30% o



The total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme is 133,226,600 Shares, representing 10% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue as
at the date of this report.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

Total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including exercised or outstanding options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of grant.

(e) Minimum period for options to be held

()

No minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised unless otherwise specified in
the relevant offer letter.

Period and payment on acceptance of options

Pursuant to the Scheme, HK$10 is payable by the
grantee to the Company on acceptance of the option
within 28 days from the date of grant of the option.

(g) Basis determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Scheme shall be
a price determined by the Board and notified to the
participants and shall be at least the highest of (a)
the closing price of the shares as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) daily quotation sheet on the date on which
the options are deemed to be granted and accepted
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme (the
“Commencement Date”), which must be a business
day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding
the Commencement Date; and (c) the nominal value of
the shares.
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(h) Life of the Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company at
general meeting or by the Board, the life of the Scheme
commenced from 21 May 2015, the date of adoption,
and ended on 20 May 2025.

As at 31 December 2020, no share option was granted
by the Company under the 2015 Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

The interests of the directors in the share options of the Company
are separately disclosed in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" above.

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were set out
below:

Long positions in the shares and underlying share of
the Company

(h) FEZEXH

BRARAREERAS LHEES

REPKLLSN B2 ERHR =T

—HFRAA-+—RERKBEH)
E-TRAFRAA-TAL-

BE-T-TF+-A=t+-8"
ARTLRERE =T~ AFa B
R ARE -

EERRMD - HEROIES 2E

mRAR

BEEMRARQRBREAESER X B
sHEl|—Eprh BTG -

R_ZBE-_EF+-_A=+—H ARAES
REBITERABRAR R S H AT EH AR
(BERBHRBEKRD ([FEHRBEEG)
EXVED) BB (D - HEER D RIEEET « %
EEBERARRREZSRBEEHE
32 EF 2 B Rz ERmSA R - AR
BEMAREFETESFR SR ESTA
([MZ2EFAI) Me AR T R BB FT 2 i
WEARINT ¢

RAEXTRGEEBERG 2HFR

Approximate

percentage of
Personal Corporate shares in issue
Name of Director Capacity Interests Interests Total  MEETHRHG
ESB &t fEARE HEER - BaOEL
Yu Ben Ansheng Beneficial owner/Interest of controlled corporation 3,000,000 146,000,000 149,000,000 11.18%
%A Ealia N/ ZHtEEER (k)
Note: Bt -

These shares are held by King Jade Holdings Limited, which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed to
be interested in such shares under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME" above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executive or their respective associates had
any interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the
following persons or corporations, other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Long position in share and underlying share of the
Company
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br EX RS —En[BEARAEET &) FraR R E O] -
RZEZZEFF+_A=+—H ' BEEEN
BRTHRABSBEESACHBALIRAEAR
AIKEEEREE (TERBEHFRBPEK
BIEXVER) B iR D - MR REEFES -

BHAZLERARRREZRSKAEKRGIZE
32EGFEZERMcERIOAE - AR
BRETFRIME ARG B BB R e
PORE ©

FERR

R-B-_BFE+_HA=+—H ' WA TFTALH
EE (EXFRBEZ A RRIESHRSHITHRA
BERINRARBIAD RAERAR D A BERL
RARBREZE 77 LB GROIFI36HFE
2B ESmBORBIT

RAEXBRRGEEBRG 2FR

Number of shares/ Approximate percentage

Name of shareholders Capacity underlying shares held of shares in issue

REEH 4 RS HERGHE (HERTROBAEIL

Singapore Zhongxin Investment Beneficial owner 437,234,620 32.82%
Company Limited ®ete 4 1) EnEEA

Li Juan (Mote2 Interest of spouse 437,234,620 32.82%

= [y

Qu Zhi Beneficial owner 333,317,500 25.02%

iiii=] BEEEBA

King Jade Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 146,000,000 10.96%
(Note 3 [ff7#3) Eé]&%ﬁ/\

Notes: Hiat -

1. Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin. Accordingly, Mr. Lai is
deemed to be interested in such shares under the SFO.

2. Ms. LiJuan, the spouse of Mr. Lai Guanglin, is also deemed to be
interested in Mr. Lai’s interest in the Company under the SFO.

1. Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company
LimitedJ5fiLai Guanglinfc £ & B B HA ©
At - RIFFESF R PEED) - Lait £ WG R
R E R dn o e Ak

2. WMEFHFRBEKRD - FTHELLT (Lai
Guanglinft & 2 B 48) Th#548 A A Laik &
AR Z s o
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3. King Jade Holdings Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Yu Ben Ansheng, an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company
had not been notified by any persons or corporations, other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year.

DONATIONS

Donations for charitable made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$19,000.

SHARES ISSUED

The Company has not issued any share during the year ended 31
December 2020.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Company has not issued any debenture during the year ended
31 December 2020.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
by the Group, or existed during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise
in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group throughout the year.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the disclosure of related party transactions set out in Note
30 to the financial statements, no Director or an entity connected
with Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance between any members of
the Group and the Company’s controlling shareholders subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

1.

From 1 January 2020 to 31 March 2020, the Group paid
consultancy fee to a company owned by Mr. Lai for a fixed
sum of HK$248,000 per month as agreed by both parties.
This is a continuing connected transaction which is exempted
under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. The total amount
of consultancy services fees paid by the Company was
HK$744,000for the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 March
2020.

On 1 April 2020, the Consultancy Services Agreement was
entered into between the Company and Brothers Capital
Limited (“BCL"), pursuant to which the Company agreed to
appoint BCL for the provision of certain consultancy services.
The term of Consultancy Services Agreement shall be a
period of one year from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021. Mr.
Lai Guanglin (“Mr. Lai") is the controlling shareholder of the
Company. As BCL is directly wholly-owned by Mr. Lai, BCL is
an associate of Mr. Lai and therefore, is an associate of the
connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.13(3)
of the Listing Rules. As such, the provision of services by
BCL under the Consultancy Services Agreement constitutes
continuing connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Consultancy
Services Agreement, BCL shall provide the Company with
consultancy services in connection with its investment and
corporate strategy. The total amount of Consultancy Services
Fees paid by the Company was HK$3,357,000 for the period
from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020. This amount does
not exceed the cap amount of HK$3,357,000 for the period
from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020 as shown in the
announcement of the Company dated 1 April 2020.

As mentioned in the announcement dated 11 May 2016
and the circular dated 15 July 2016 of the Company,
on 11 May 2016, Mao Xing Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Lender”), entered into
a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with China
Victory International Holdings Limited, (“CVIL"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Agria Corporation, pursuant to which
the Lender has conditionally agreed to grant to CVIL a loan
facility in the amount of up to US$10,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$77,746,000) upon and subject to the
terms and conditions set out therein.
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As at the date of the Loan Agreement, Mr. Lai Guanglin,
a director and the controlling shareholder of the Company
(Mr. Lai resigned as director of the Company on 30 March
2018) and was also the controlling shareholder of Agria
Corporation. As such, CVIL is therefore a connected person
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The transactions contemplated under the Loan Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The loan carried interest at 10.5% per annum and is
repayable by 31 July 2020. The loan was secured by the
entire issued shares of CVIL executed by Agria Group Limited
(“AGL"), the immediate holding company of CVIL, and also
guaranteed by a deed of corporate guarantee executed by
Agria Corporation in favour of the Group.

Pursuant to a resolution passed in a special general meeting
on 23 February 2018, the Group agreed to novate and
AGL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Agria Corporation and
the immediate holding company of CVIL, agreed to assume
the Group’s loan to CVIL of US$10,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$78,357,000) with all other terms and conditions
remained unchanged.

On 9 May 2019, the Group entered into a loan agreement
("2019 Loan Agreement”) with AGL to renew the loan and
the proposed annual caps from 1 August 2019 to 31 July
2022.

The annual caps of the maximum principal loan outstanding
for the financial years ended/ending 31 December 2019,
31 December 2020, 31 December 2021 and period
ending 31 July 2022 were US$10,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$78,500,000) for each year/period.
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The annual caps of the interest amounts for the financial
years ended/ending 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020,
31 December 2021 and period ending 31 July 2022 were
US$441,000, US$1,053,000, US$1,050,000 and US$610,000
respectively (“Annual Caps”). The 2019 Loan Agreement,
Annual Caps of the principal loan outstanding and interest
amounts were approved by the shareholders of the Company
at the Company’s special general meeting on 24 June 2019.

Under the 2019 Loan Agreement, the clause of the share
mortgage executed by AGL, being the sole shareholder of
CVIL, over the entire issued shares of CVIL in favour of the
Group has been removed. Save as the above amendments, all
other terms of the 2019 Loan Agreement remain unchanged
and continue in full force and effect.

On 21 July 2020, the Group and Agria Group Limited (“AGL")
agreed to enter into a supplemental loan agreement (“2020
Supplemental Loan Agreement”) to adjust downward the
interest rate for each of the interest period from ten point
five per cent (10.5%) of the loan per annum to five point five
per cent (5.5%) of the loan per annum.

The loan is also secured by a share charge to be executed
by the Borrower in favour of the Lender as a continuing
security and continuing obligation for performance by the
Borrower of its obligations in the 2019 Loan Agreement (as
amended or supplemented by the 2020 Supplemental Loan
Agreement). Pursuant to the Share Charge, the Borrower will
charge 20% of its share interests in Agria Asia Investments
Limited (“AAIL") to the Lender. AAIL is a company with
limited liability incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
is wholly-owned by the Borrower. AAIL is indirectly holding a
share equity investment in an agricultural enterprise in New
Zealand through Agria (Singapore) Pte. Ltd, the only and
wholly-owned direct subsidiary of AAIL.

Save and except for the revision on the original interest rate
and the share charge by AGL, all other terms as set out in
the 2019 Loan Agreement remain unchanged.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the interest income
from AGL amounted to approximately US$858,000,
(equivalent to HK$6,685,000) (2019: US$1,050,000
(equivalent to HK$8,254,000)).

As at 31 December 2020, the loan to AGL amounted
to US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$77,830,000)
(31 December 2019: US$10,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$78,229,000)).

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the continuing connected transaction and
confirmed that (i) the entering into of the Loan Agreement,
although it is not conducted in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, it is in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole; and (ii) the terms
of the loan agreement and the Annual Caps are on normal
commercial terms and are fair and reasonable.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transaction in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the above mentioned
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Report of the Directors
B
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Report of the Directors
=R

Save as disclosed above and in Note 30 to the financial
statements, during the year, there were no connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are
required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

—  the largest supplier 20.32%
—  five largest suppliers combined 60.61%

Sales

- the largest customer 4.92%
- five largest customers combined 15.99%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance with corporate governance code of
the Company are set out in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT” of this Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei
Wen and Mr. Guan Zhigiang.

By reference to “A Guide for the Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, written terms of reference which describe the
authority and duties of the audit committee were prepared and
adopted by the Board of the Company.

The annual results have been reviewed by the audit committee of
the Company.

@ SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B h BB E R 2 7

B bt 2 B T R AR M RE 30 BE A
FA AR T$E}EEU?tm%EHIJ%14A
ERATFAAERE EWARRETER - A
H B REAER T BER H S IF
BERER S o

FEEFRMER
AEBETEHEBEEFFADBIFLZE
BREEEMLOT

PREE

— =AHERE2032%

— AAHEREAF60.61%

HE

— mAEF4.92%

— RAAREPAE15.99%

BEE HBBEALHEMBIR GLEEMA
BERARRNRIRARS%IA EE)BIE bt E2H
R EPHAE 2 4k -

W REEATA

BRARRETERERTUMNFBHRNA
E#&Zm%% HE)

EREES

RRREREEGH MBI IFNITES

BIEUERE  REXEEREERELEM
AR

ARRIZEFTE2RBBGTMASREM
Hﬂﬁkﬁﬁy,\@Zh%H HlR] KRN EZ
ZEGEMBRRES  FINBERZES
MBI N E -



Report of the Directors
B

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT BHAARERE

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company REARAB ARG 2 ARAERARRESFA
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has Mo AARHEEH - AQR SR ETRAAT

maintained the prescribed public float required under the Listing REZBFIARFERE °

Rules as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS M

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers RS ImER O R BOK B TR B e

who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. % ZREEERER  EEEBKBEEE
BEIE -

By Order of the Board AEEGW

Lai Fulin *E

Chairman R

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021 B T —F=H=+mWmA
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To the Shareholders of Softpower International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion
The consolidated financial statements of Softpower International

Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 65 to 159, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

The key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

. Net realisable value of inventories
e Impairment of trade receivables

e Impairment of loan to a related company
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Key audit matter

BREITEE

Net realisable value of inventories

Refer to notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, inventories of

the Group amounted to approximately
HK$192 million. As described in the Basis

of preparation and accounting policies

in note 2(h) to the consolidated financial
statements, inventories are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Management applied judgment in
determining the appropriate provisions

for slow moving, obsolete inventories and
inventories with net realisable value below

cost. Net realisable value is determined
based upon a detailed analysis of the aging -
of inventories on a product-by-product
basis, and with reference to their latest
invoice prices and current market conditions.

An impairment provision of approximately -
HK$13 million has been recorded to reduce

the carrying value of certain inventories to

their estimated net realisable value.

We focused on this area due to the size
of the balances and the higher degree of
estimation uncertainty and subjectivity in
management’s judgment in determining the
net realisable value of the inventories.

How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

EAHET N RERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on net
realisable value of inventories included:

Understood and evaluated the appropriateness and consistency
of the basis management used in estimating the level of
provision for inventories, and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

Compared the historical accuracy of inventory provisioning,
on a sample basis, to the realised amount and evaluated the
outcome of prior period assessment of inventory provision to
assess the effectiveness of management’s estimation process;
and reviewing the level of inventory write-offs during the year.

Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of inventory aging
used by management to estimate the appropriate provision for
slow moving and obsolete inventories.

Performed audit analytics on inventory holding and movement
data to identify products with indication of slow moving or
obsolescence.

Compared the carrying amounts of a sample of inventories
to their net realisable value through a detailed review of sale
subsequent to the year end. Where there are no subsequent
sales of the respective products after the year end, we
challenged management as to the realisable value of the
products, corroborating explanations with the aging, sales
orders, historical margins and marketability of the respective
inventories, as appropriate.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the assumptions of
management in relation to assessment on net realisable value of
inventories to be supportable by available evidence.
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Key audit matter
BARETEE

Impairment of trade receivables
Refer to notes 4 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held
trade receivables of approximately HK$127
million net of the provision of approximately
HK$0.1 million. Recoverability is assessed
and provision is made for lifetime expected
credit losses on trade receivables.

Management applied judgement in
determining the approprlate loss allowance
on trade receivables. Trade receivables
relating to customers with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection
are assessed individually for provision for
loss allowance. Expected credit losses are
estimated by grouping the remaining trade
receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for
likelihood of recovery, taking into account the
nature of the customers, their geographical
locations and their ageing categories, and
applying expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the
trade receivables. The expected credit loss
rates are determined based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience with an
adjustment to reflect current and forward-
looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables.

We focused on this area due to the size
of the balances and the higher degree of
estimation uncertainty and subjectivity in
management’s judgment in determining the
expected credit loss allowance of the trade
receivables.
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How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

EAHETT N EERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
provision for loss allowance on trade receivables included:

— Understood, evaluated and tested, on a sample basis,
management’s key control over the assessment on
recoverability of trade receivable balances and the related
loss allowance, including periodic review on trade receivables
aging, historical loss rates and approval of provision made,
and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level
of other inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

—  Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of trade receivables
aging used by management to estimate the appropriate
provision for loss allowance.

—  Obtained management’s assessment on the expected credit loss
allowance of trade receivables and assessed the reasonableness
of the expected loss rates. We corroborated and validated
management’s assessment based on the historical settlement
pattern, correspondence with the customers, and evidence
from external sources including the relevant public search
results relating to the financial circumstances of the relevant
customers.

— Assessed management’s assessment of current market
condition and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors by comparing the data used by
management against publicly available information.

- Checked the mathematical accuracy of management’s
calculation for loss allowance of trade receivables.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the judgement
and estimates made by management in relation to assessment on
provision for loss allowance on trade receivables to be supportable
by available evidence.

BAHEEEHEE ZRIGENEREBATHNEREFER

- AR AR SHE A - B ENE 5 RIGTIRER
a] 4 1 5 M AR R e %ﬂ%ﬁ’ﬂf%%ﬁ“ BIEE! H*“.:Tféf
SRR IBER L - 5 1B % B R R E’Jﬁ‘t/ﬁ I iBiEE

ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁgwﬂﬁ@@ﬁﬁwm@%ﬁ;Eﬁ
M BENPEEER R ERNTE) KT B AR E
BERR -

- AR REEE B ERIRIRE SR
fBE AR -

- DEEEEYRSEKEEREEERRENTE W
BARA KM A B - R ENERE [ EREAE - TR
B BN - ERESAE RINEIORA B - AT
s SRR AR RS -

- LBEREEROMERANEY  AFHEERESENTS
KRR HEN R ERESARMES -

- BETEREMERSENGUEEERGNER -

RIEFOTNERE - B IBREE @A E AR R

RARBRRE SNBSS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % #§ @



Independent Auditor’s Report
38 7 A% BBl e v

Key audit matter

BREITEE

Impairment of loan to a related company
Refer to notes 4, 19 and 30 (d) to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held a
loan to a related company of approximately
HK$78 million net of the provision of
approximately HK$0.1 million.

Management applied judgement in
determining the appropriate loss allowance -
for impairment of loan to the related
company. The loan is secured by corporate
guarantee by the holding company of the
borrower (the “Guarantor”). The loan is -
interest bearing and repayable by July 2022

as detailed in note 30(d) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Management reviewed the financial
conditions of the related company and
the Guarantor, taking into account the
settlement history of the related interest
elements, and a provision of HK$0.1 million
is made for this loan as at 31 December
2020.

We focused on this area due to the size
of the balance and the higher degree of
estimation uncertainty and subjectivity in
management’s judgment in determining the
recoverable amount of the loan.
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How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

EAHET N RERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to management'’s impairment assessment
on the loan receivable included:

Understood and evaluated management assessment on
impairment of loan to a related company, and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

Reviewed the loan agreement and obtained direct confirmation
from the related company on the balance and terms of the
loan as at 31 December 2020 with no exception.

Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of interest payment
received and whether they are in accordance with the terms of
the loan.

Challenged management as to the recoverability of the loan,
corroborating explanations with the latest financial information
of the related company and the Guarantor and correspondence
with the relevant parties.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the assumptions of
management in relation to the impairment assessment on loan to
the related company to be supportable by available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
38 7 A% Bl

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 7 B

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Hiu Tung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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Continuing operation:
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other gains, net

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses

(Provision for)/Reversal of impairment
of financial assets

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance income, net

Profit before income tax
Tax expense

Profit for the year from continuing
operation

Discontinued operation:
Loss for the year from discontinued
operation

Profit for the year

Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings/(Loss) per share
Basic and diluted
From continuing operation
From discontinued operation

Consolidated Income Statement
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The notes on pages 72 to 159 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-ZF+_A=+—HIFE

Restated

EE7|

2020 2019
—ECEF —hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
497,295 527,552
(356,804) (393,860)
140,491 133,692
9,512 644
(16,562) (20,268)
(100,952) (103,424)
(409) 571
32,080 11,215
8,276 10,339
(6,871) (8,471)
1,405 1,868
33,485 13,083
(2,773) (1,530)
30,712 11,553
(15,808) (7,123)
14,904 4,430
20,152 6,790
(5,248) (2,360)
14,904 4,430
HK cents HK cent
Bl JEN
2.30 0.87
(0.79) (0.36)
1.51 0.51

59H ME R FFRAEMBRERLZ
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
n‘/'ﬁ (=] ﬂifﬁl&ﬁn%

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Ktat FET FHET
Profit for the year RE A 14,904 4,430
Other comprehensive income: Hh 2 AR
Item that will not be reclassified HiZHT & BT w2k
subsequently to profit or loss BB IEH
Actuarial gain on post-employment BB R BN ERMEE
benefit obligations, net of tax R THIEE 24 184 636
Item that may be subsequently B 1% ]2 B HEAR 2 12K
reclassified to profit or loss EBZHE
Currency translation differences BmE = 184 (468)
Other comprehensive income for the ~ AFEEth 2 EUES
year, net of tax HERFRIER 368 168
Total comprehensive income AEEETHEINEERE
for the year 15,272 4,598
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EWRE (B8 RERERN
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RARIEZREEA 20,674 7,001
Non-controlling interests TR R (5.402) (2,403)
15,272 4,598
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EME (B8 BEEB
attributable to Equity holders of NZN/NCIL S eSS DN
the Company:
Continuing operation BEEEET 31,542 11,850
Discontinued operation quJ: R (10,868) (4,849)
20,674 7,001

The notes on pages 72 to 159 are an integral part of these FENENS9EZHF AU ELREMBREZ
consolidated financial statements. By o
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ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Loan to a related company
Rental deposits and other assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Pledged certificate of deposit

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity holders
Share capital
Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

The notes on pages 72 to 159 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

aE
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13
14
15
19
19

18
19

19

AERE

20

21
21
22

23
24

wE M BIR DL

As at 31 December 2020
R-ZB-ZTF+-_A=+—H

zozo 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
3,634 17,676
114,977 135,480
426 477
77,706 78,229
6,524 6,957
203,267 238,819
192,168 191,526
127,476 121,007
55,987 34,156
1,742 2,722

4 3,457
10,000 10,000
36,000 36,000
189,088 157,683
612,465 556,551
815,732 795,370
26,645 26,665
537,764 517,156
564,409 543,821
(3,187) 2,215
561,222 546,036

BEZMEALERAMBHRRZ
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
LA MBHIR DR

As at 31 December 2020
RZF_FF+_A=+—H

2020 2019
223 —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Hit FET FET
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities IRBEMS
Lease liabilities HEaE 14 98,979 117,340
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEBE 26 1,508 1,816
Other non-current liabilities HEiIEREamE 1,527 1,865
102,014 121,021
Current liabilities REEME
Trade payables, other payables and B SENFIA - EAEFRIA
contract liabilities keEREE 27 71,011 58,756
Taxation payable FERTHLIE 2,864 818
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 21,637 21,355
Borrowings Ba 25 56,984 47,384
152,496 128,313
Total liabilities HwWEE 254,510 249,334
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 815,732 795,370
Net current assets REEEFHE 459,969 428,238
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERGAHEME 663,236 667,057

The financial statements on pages 65 to 159 were approved by FSER IO B HRERECHESTEN_Z

the board of Directors on 24 March 2021 and were signed on its Z—F-AZTHEAZ  YRREFSFH
behalf: Z:
Lai Fulin 38138 Yu Ben Ansheng B1 %4
Director 2% Director 2%

The notes on pages 72 to 159 are an integral part of these

221598 2T AL EHREMEHRERZ
consolidated financial statements. :
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for P B 4 52 )

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HIFE

Attrbutable to equity holders of the Company
RATREREARETR

Share-
based Non-

Share Share  Copital ~ Merger  Statutory Other  Exchange  payment  Retained  controlling
aptalpremm resee resee  fesene feseve resene reneeamings o interests Total
Ikf
BERN

Ba o BRER KRR oRER  GTER  AMBR EiRR  NRER  REEN FEREE 28
WSO SO0 HSUD0 HSON HKSOI WSO WSO WSO RSO0 RSO kSO
TAT  TEL  TAL  TEr AT Tt TEr  TET  TEL TET  TEn

At 1 anuary 2019 RE-PE-A-B 6665 16618 M5 370 4 1% (G 4356 O30 4618 S14B
Proft or he year RERH = = - - - - - S 6T Q30 440

Other comprehensie income: Af2ENE
Actuara gan on post-employment BBk R RE

beneft obligation, netof tax e BIER = = = = = 636 = = = = 636
Curency transation diffeences ~ EBAEEE - - - - - = (é25) = = (#3) (468)
Total comprehensive income TERRANRAE
for the year - - - - - 636 (425) - 6,79 (2403) 459
Transactons with owners: BEEALG
Share-based payment IR RERAR - - - = = = = 5 = = 5
Transfer upon apse of share options~ FEEFRfE K = = = = = 2 - )4 = -
At31 December 2019 RIENE
+=A=t-A 26665 126618 315 3700 U 1,131 (483) 19 1102 2215 546,036

The notes on pages 72 to 159 are an integral part of these T2E1598 2 MF AL SHRENBHRERZ

%
consolidated financial statements. %%%Bﬁ 0
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B HE g S B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KLARRRHEAREDS
Share-
based Non-
Share  Share  Capital  Merger Statutory ~ Other Exchange  payment  Retained controlling
apital  premium  reserve  reseve  reseve  reseve  reseve  resenve  eamings  imterests  Total
it
BERN
Be  REEE E4RE  GUER  tERE  HMER  EXRE  NRBRE  RERN FBRER g
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSUOO  HKSO00  HKSU00  HKSUOD  HKSO00  HKSUOO  HKSO00  HKSUOO  HKSO00
fér  TAT  FET  FET  TAr  TAT  FET  FEr AT TAT A1
At 1 January 2020 N-F-FF-A-H 26,665 126,618 W15 3700 U 1731 (483) 39 35110 2215 546,036
Proft for the yer TERR - - - - - - - - NI (BM) 1490
Other compreensive income: T
Actuaral gan on post-employment B4 BRI RE
beneft obligation, net of tax W& NhiEk - - - - - 184 - - - - 184
Curency transation differences EhhEEE - - - - - - 38 - - (154) 18
Total comprehensive income TERAENREE
for the year - - - - - 184 38 - N1 (40 150
Transactions with owners: BRI
Shares repurchased and cancelled RV R 58
ot 23 72 (0) (66) - - - - - - - - (86)
Transfer upon apse of share options~ REEFRIE R - - - - - - - (349) 349 - -
At31 December 2020 R-T_%F
t=A=1-A 2,645 126552 W15 3700 U 1915 (145) - 60 (3187 561222

The notes on pages 72 to 159 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBESmREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
St 22 “EB-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$000
(k23 FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities RETHZHERE
Cash generated from operations REXBEECRS 29 37,351 67,523
Interest paid BAFIE (6,910) (8,519)
Interest received BUF & 9,129 10,221
Income tax refund/(paid) 2RE (B RS 2,687 (2,191)
Net cash generated from operating activities A& & EEHE AR &5 42,257 67,034
Cash flows from investing activities REFHRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BEAYIZE - BiE N & & 13 (363) (2,820)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE RSB
plant and equipment FT1S5E 29 60 80
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERAREETABRZZ
at fair value through profit or loss CREEMSHIA 1,004 =
Payment for acquisition of intangible assets BB EE - (341)
Dividend income from financial assets BARBEFABECSREE
at fair value through profit or loss ZRBWA 70 108
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEESE/ (FTR) B FE
investing activities 771 (2,973)
Cash flows from financing activities METEvHERE
Drawdown of borrowings RRAEE 326,007 307,224
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (316,407) (317,284)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BHEARITIEFIEM - (5,000)
Purchase of pledged certificate of deposit BB A B EIAFRE (10,027) —
Redemption of pledged certificate of deposit & FFHEMER 10,000 -
Payment for repurchase of ordinary shares  EIE&E @R 5K (86) -
Principal elements of lease payments R ERNRK (23,006) (22,522)
Decrease in amount due from a FEW — I AR AR R SRR YR
non-controlling shareholder - 1,512
Net cash used in financing activities METSTAREFE (13,519) (36,070)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re KR EEYEINFE 29,509 27,991
Exchange differences [ 5 =% 1,896 (425)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FzH e RREEFEY
of the year 22 157,683 130,117
Cash and cash equivalents FReBESRESEEY
at end of the year 22 189,088 157,683

The notes on pages 72 to 159 are an integral part of these F72E159E TS AN EEAMEREY
=

consolidated financial statements.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 3§ °



General information

Softpower International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged
in trading of construction materials, mainly pipes and fittings.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Victoria Place,
5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
discontinued the business in biomass pellet fuel products
segment. Accordingly, certain comparative information
related to the biomass pellet fuel products segment is
classified as “loss for the year from discontinued operation”
in the consolidated income statement (Note 33).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2021.

Basis of preparation and accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.

e SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B h BB E R 2 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments to standards for the first time for the annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2020:

Amendments to Definition of Material
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKAS 39, Hedge accounting
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

Conceptual Framework Revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting for Financial Reporting
2018
Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 Cycle

The Group has applied for the first time the above new
standards and amendments to standards issued by the
HKICPA. The adoption of new standards and amendments
to standards do not have a material impact on the Group's
results of operations or financial position.

Issued but not yet effective standards and amendments
to standards

The Group has not early adopted any other new standards
and amendments to standards that have been issued but are
not yet effective. The Group is assessing the impact of these
new standards and amendments to standards.

The following new standards and amendments to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2020 and have not been early adopted
by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

Issued but not yet effective standards and amendments
to standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent
Concessions'
Amendments to HKAS Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, — Phase 22
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before intended use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current and Non-current*

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

1 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

2 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021

3 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

4 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

5 effective date to be determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in
the acquire on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquire that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interest’s proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquire is re-
measurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o S A W

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @

(Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.

Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interest are also
recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

(i) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o S A W

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @
(Continued)
(i) Transactions and balances (i) XZR4EE

(iii)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
revaluation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

— assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at

(iii)

SINERXFRXFAHARE
et EMNEEERZERN
BMABEER  REERT
R RIREFRZERBEAI
SNESIEZEREERAR
P E &£ 2 SME Wt R B 1B 5
FIAM R -

E S AT

DR EREZINER TR
PESBERAR (BT HESR
REBERRAZE) 2 XER
MBIRRIBAT A BRER
258

- BHIENPBRRE

NEEEME EiRZY

the closing rate at the date of that statement AR R B Hay W &
of financial position; TIpE ;
- income and expenses for each income - BUREERZWRARMAZ

statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);

mFE R HE (R IE%
FHERWIFZHE B
EXNRBEFEZAE
B LB T HRA
KX AR 5 BE
ipd) &

and
— all resulting exchange differences are - FEBEHUBEENERZE
recognised in other comprehensive income. FEAE H fth 2 T WY 2R P AR

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(iii) Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group'’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment, comprising, leasehold
improvements, plant and machinery, equipment,
furniture and fixtures and motor vehicles are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
expenses are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @

(Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (d) Y% - BMERRE @)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Plant, machinery and
equipment
Leasehold improvements

3-10 years

5 years or the lease
period, if shorter

Office furniture, fixtures 3-5 years
and fittings

Office equipment 3-5 years

Computer equipment 3-5 years

Motor vehicles 3-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘Other gains, net’ in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @

(Continued)
(e) AMBARIZRERFERME

(e) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
at least tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(i.e. CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o S A W

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @
(Continued)
(i) Classification (i) &

The Group classifies its financial assets in the REERATAERFNE S

following measurement categories: BEEETHE

- those to be measured subsequently at fair — ®BEULAABEEE
value (either through OClI or through profit or HEB AHEMESK
loss), and mkER) NEREE -

&
- those to be measured at amortised cost. — DAEBHEKAGTENSR
BE o

The classification depends on the entity’s business ZOBBAREIRBEESR

model for managing the financial assets and the BENEBEXURZEE

contractual terms of the cash flows. BWERIRERERFE -

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses HRUAREBEAENEH

will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. BE - HlimMEBER AR

For investments in equity instruments that are sl B4R S W o B0 3E

not held for trading, this will depend on whether RHEMEZTARE - &

the Group has made an irrevocable election at Yo 25 F0 B 18 A9 51 2 A BUR R

the time of initial recognition to account for the AEBTUBREREESEE

equity investment at fair value through other AR E EmAG R R

comprehensive income (FVOCI). EBUARAABEFEAHEE

Bt AE RS Was o
(ii) Recognition and derecognition (i) BRRARILER
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets ERARABERLEN SR

are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @

(Continued)

(i) 2

(iii)) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

—  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o S A W

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies

(Continued)

(iii)) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses)
and impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit
or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(iiij) Measurement (Continued)

(iv)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in
the statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

2.

(iii)

(iv)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o S A W

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @

(Continued)

(iv) Impairment (Continued)

Impairment on other receivables is measured as
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. If a significant increase
in credit risk of a receivables has occurred since
initial recognition, then impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses.

The Group leases various office, warehouses, retail
shops and staff quarters. Property leases are typically
made for fixed periods of one to ten years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
various different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and the
corresponding liabilities at the date of which the
respective leased asset is available for use by the Group.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e  variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate;

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value in a similar economic environment with
similar terms and conditions.

Payments associated with short-term leases of office
and warehouse are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (“FIFO") method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold in the ordinary course of business. Trade
receivables are generally due for settlement within the
credit period and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

()

(k)

)

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated
statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @
(Continued)
General and specific borrowing costs directly BEEFEBTWE B EERE
attributable to the acquisition, construction or BEE(FEVAL—BRERBERE
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that NEETEERGNIHENEE) M
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get —MEFEEERS - MAZEE
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the ENKARN  BEEBEAB -HEHX
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are HEBFREIEESIL -

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment HEEEE  BEFEEREEDN
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on X M ER R E AR IR E A
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs EE&ERBERMEMEBERAFI
eligible for capitalisation. B e
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss B EMEBR AT EEBHARE
in the period in which they are incurred. P FER ©
(i) Employee leaves (i) ESEH
Employee entitlements to annual leave are EEFZER 2 FREREMN
recognised when they accrue to employees. A BREER ANEEEREZE
provision is made for the estimated liability for ZHHMTERESRERE
annual leave as a result of services rendered by MEBFERBR2IGFTAERR
employees up to the end of reporting period. Bfh o
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity BEAZEZRBRERE
leave are not recognised until the time of leave. SRR o
(i) Bonus plans (i) 72ALGE
The expected cost of bonus payments are REBEEESMEH R
recognised as a liability when the Group has a A EE 2 EELHETE R
present legal or constructive obligation as a result £ - BeerI Sl at L B E
of services rendered by employees and a reliable B FERTIEAS A SR
estimate of the obligation can be made. RE—IHAME -
Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be TEAFHE zBEEBER
settled within twelve months and are measured at TZEARNERERE - WiRRTE
the amounts expected to be paid when they are HREERE TN 228
settled. RTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o S A W

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @
(Continued)

(iii) Pension obligations (i) Bk EF

Following the adoption of the Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF"”) Scheme in December
2000, all employees of the Group employed in
Hong Kong joined the MPF Scheme. Under this
scheme, employees and the Group are required
to make contributions to the scheme calculated
at 5% of the individual employee’s monthly
basic salaries, subject to a cap of HK$1,500. The
Group's contributions to this scheme are expensed
when they are due. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s employees in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") are covered by various
government sponsored pension plans. These
government agencies are responsible for the
pension liabilities to these employees. The relevant
group companies pay monthly contributions to
these pension plans based on certain percentages
of the salaries, subject to a certain ceiling.

The employees employed by the operations in
Macau are members of the government-managed
retirement benefits schemes operated by the
Macau government. The Macau operations are
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits schemes operated by
the Macau government is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

Under these plans, the Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to make further payments
once the required contributions have been paid.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @

(Continued)

(iv) Share-based payment (iv) URGRERZ 5

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the entity
receives services from employees as considerations
for equity instruments (options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

e including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

e excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save or holding shares for a
specified period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-market
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the income statement with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o S A W

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position
date in the places where the Company and its
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

(ii) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the statement of financial
position date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Generally the Group is unable to control
the reversal of the temporary difference for
associates.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries only to the extent that
it is probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o S A W

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

(i) Sale of goods — wholesale

The Group sells a range of pipes and fittings and
biomass pellet fuel products. Sales are recognised
when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the customer has full discretion over
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customer, and either the customer has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the
price specified in the sales contracts. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate provision for
returns.

A receivable is recognised when the products
are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

Deposits collected from the customers before

product delivery are recognised as contract
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(ii) Sale of goods - retail

The Group operates a chain of retail stores selling
pipes and fittings products. Revenue from the
sale of goods is recognised when a group entity
sells a product to the customer. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately when the
customer purchases the product and takes delivery
in store.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company'’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Intangible assets
Trademark

Separately acquired trademark is shown at historical
cost. Trademark has a finite useful life and is carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of trademark over their estimated useful life of 10
years.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity
that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale
and that represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued
operation are presented separately in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o S A W

3. Financial risk management 3. MERRERE

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit and counterparty risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s financial risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance by actively managing
debt level and cash flow in order to maintain a strong
financial position and minimising refinancing and
liquidity risks by attaining healthy debt repayment
capacity, appropriate maturity profile and availability of
banking facilities.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong
and in Macau with minor operations in the
Mainland China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the
United States dollars (“USD"), Macau Pataca
("MOP") and Renminbi (“RMB"). Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities, which are denominated in a
currency that is not the functional currency
of the group entities. In order to mitigate
the foreign currency risk, the Group has
been closely monitoring its foreign currency
exposure and requirements and will arrange
for any hedging facilities if necessary.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(@

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As HK$ is pegged against USD and MOP is
pegged against HK$, the Group is exposed
to limited exchange rate fluctuation. As a
result, the exchange rate risk exposure in
respect of USD and MOP are not significant.
While for RMB, the exchange rate fluctuation
is relatively volatile. At 31 December 2020,
if RMB had strengthened/weakened by
5% (2019: 5%) against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit would
have been HK$114,000 higher/lower (2019:
post-tax profit of HK$173,000 higher/lower)
respectively mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of RMB-
denominated financial assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S WS e B R

3. Financial risk management (Continued) 3. MBRKREE@
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THEE (&)

(i) FIF=R

() Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. The Group's interest-
bearing assets mainly include loan to a related
company and bank balances and deposits,
details of which have been disclosed in Notes
19, 21 and 22. The Group's exposure to
changes in interest rates is also attributable
to its borrowings, details of which have
been disclosed in Note 25. Borrowings carry
at floating rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk whereas those carry
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. As at 31 December 2020,
approximately 37% (2019: 35%) of the
Group's borrowings were carried at floating
rates and expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. The Group has not used
any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure
against cash flow interest-rate risks.

As at 31 December 2020, if interest rate
has increased/decreased by 25 basis points
with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2020 would have been HK$44,000 lower/
higher (2019: post-tax profit of HK$34,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of increase/
decrease in interest expense on borrowings.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk

(@

Risk management

Credit risk mainly arises from bank deposits,
trade and other receivables, other deposits
and loan to a related company. The carrying
amounts of these balances substantially
represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit and counterparty risk in relation to
financial assets.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2020 all the
bank deposits are deposited in high quality
financial institutions without significant credit
risk. The credit risk on bank deposits is limited
because 63% (2019: 57%) of the Group’s
bank balances are placed with subsidiaries
of state-owned banks and others are
placed with reputable financial institutions.
Management does not expect any loss from
non-performance of these banks.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue trade and other
receivables.

Rental deposits made to landlords are also
considered to be of low risk. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. Other than the loan to a related
company as mentioned below, the Group
has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o S A W

3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(@

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

In respect of the loan to a related company,
as detailed in Note 30(d), the Group obtained
share charge executed by the borrower and
guarantees executed by the guarantor in
favour of the Group as a continuing security
and continuing obligation for performance
by the borrower of its obligations to minimize
the credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets
Trade receivables

The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped with
similar risk characteristics and, collectively or
individually, assessing them for likelihood of
recovery.

The Group categorises its trade receivables,
except those individually assessed, based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The expected loss rates are
based on the payment profiles of sales over
a period of 12 months before 31 December
2020 and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR BB A B R
3. Financial risk management (Continued) 3. MBRKREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEEBER#E
(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued) (b)) EERXZIELE (&)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) ETEEERE )
Trade receivables (Continued) B 5 WA (&)
For trade receivables relating to accounts in REBENE S EKRR
which there are objective evidence that the - HRBEEBFREXR
debtor faces significant financial difficulties BRESAMEEREXE
or enter liquidation, they are assessed TSR B SOETTIE R AR
individually for impairment allowance. No - BHERNE PR
specific loss allowance was made as at 31 mERMERE BZE—
December 2020 (2019: Nil). E_EFE+_RA=+—

FRBEBEREBRBRE
wCE-NEFE 8 -

The expected credit loss rate for the FIth & 5 W FRIB A TR
remaining trade receivables is determined as HEEBEBEXBEMN
follow: ™
Lifetime Gross Lifetime Net
expected carrying  expected carrying
loss rate amount  credit loss amount
2HES 2HES

FEFEX RKREAE FEFE KREFE
% HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

As at 31 December R-B-FF

2020 +=-A=+—H

Collective assessment SR

Within credit period =EHR 0.06 83,145 (53) 83,092
1 to 30 days 1RE30K 0.09 27,323 (24) 27,299
31 to 60 days 31RE60K 0.10 11,345 (11) 11,334
61 to 90 days 61KE0K 0.21 3,253 ) 3,246
91 to 120 days 91 RE120K 0.44 417 (2) 415
Over 120 days BiB120K 0.60 2,103 (13) 2,090

127,586 (110) 127,476
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W B W
3. Financial risk management (Continued) 3. MBRKREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIREKRREZEE)
(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued) (b) EERXZHEE (&)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) ETHEERE )
Trade receivables (Continued) B 5 WA (B)
Lifetime Gross Lifetime Net
expected carrying expected carrying
loss rate amount credit loss amount
2 HATE A 2 HRTE R
EEEBX IRE4RE =EEB REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& FET FHET
As at 31 December RZZE—NEF
2019 +=—A=+—H
Collective assessment SR
Within credit period EEHR - 69,260 - 69,260
1 to 30 days 1RE30K - 24,463 - 24,463
31 to 60 days 31RE60K - 13,094 - 13,094
61 to 90 days 61KE90K - 7,667 - 7,667
91 to 120 days 91 KE120K - 3,704 - 3,704
Over 120 days BiE120K - 2,819 - 2,819

121,007 = 121,007
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The directors of the Group consider the
probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been
significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares risk of a default occurring on the
assets as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition.
Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

e actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
company’s ability to meet its obligations;

e  actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the company;

e significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the
company, including changes in the
payment status of the counterparty.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor
is more than 90 days past due in making a
contractual payment/repayable demanded.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o S A W

3. Financial risk management (Continued) 3. MBRKREE@

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued) (b)) GCERXZLEE (&)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost
(Continued)

The loss allowance for other financial
assets at amortised cost as at 31 December
2020 amounted to HK$1,419,000 (2019:
HK$1,121,000) as detailed in Note 19.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and

(i) HEEHRE &)

H A 5 BB A A
REE)

R-ZE_LTF+ A
=+ — BIRE A
EMEmemMEEEE
BE£%5451,419,000
B (ZE—NF
1,121,000 7T) * &5
BFE19

B 5 FE WA N 4 4 5

other financial assets at amortised cost are MAGENE M S
presented as net impairment losses within EEMREEBBEEL

operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash and availability of
funding from an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. Management maintains rolling
forecast of the Group’s liquidity reserves which
comprises undrawn banking facilities and cash and
cash equivalents, on the basis of expected cash
flows.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the date of financial
reporting to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B R R I T
3. Financial risk management (Continued) 3. MBRKREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MEREBEE @)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () #EEZELEEE ()
Less than Between Over
1year 1tob5 years 5 years Total
—FUR —ZRFZH REHUE e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

At 31 December 2020 R-BZEF

+t=ZA=t+-H
Trade and other payables &5 & E {1 fEFIE 51,795 - - 51,795
Borrowings BE 56,984 - - 56,984
Interest payment on EEZ R
borrowings 346 - - 346
Lease liabilities HEaE 21,637 83,484 15,495 120,616
Interest payment on HEBEBEZFIELN
lease liabilities 4,480 11,983 291 16,754
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—NF
+=-A=+—H8
Trade and other payables 25 & E Al FIE 42,579 £ = 42,579
Borrowings - 47,384 - - 47,384
Interest payment on EEZFEXN
borrowings 448 = - 448
Lease liabilities HEAE 21,355 83,932 33,408 138,695
Interest payment on MEBEZFEZM
lease liabilities 5,241 15,378 1,322 21,941
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. Financial risk management (Continued) 3. MBRKREE@
3.2 EXEEERE

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by
total equity.

The Group's strategy was to maintain a solid capital
base to support the operations and development of its
business in the long term. Given its existing principal
business, management considers a gearing ratio as
measured by total bank borrowings to total equity of
not more than 50% as solid and reasonable. The table
below analyses the Group's capital structure at 31
December 2019 and 2020 as follows:

Total borrowings BIEE
Total equity L e

BERELE

Gearing ratio
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2020 2019
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HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
56,984 47,384
561,222 546,036
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying value of trade receivables, other loans
and receivables, bank balances and deposits, trade and
other payables, lease liabilities and borrowings are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values. The fair
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group for similar financial instruments.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December
2020 by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

—  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1)

— inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2)

— inputs for the asset and liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

3. Financial risk management (Continued) 3.

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Fair value
Hierarchy
DREEER
Financial assets SREE Level 2
— Investment funds —REES E-H

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during
the year.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
It includes quoted market price or dealer quotes for
similar instruments. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

MERREE &)
3.3 DABEEMET@E
Fair value Fair value
as at as at

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
R-Z-Zf RZE—NF
+=-A=1+-H +-A=+—-~H

MAREE MAR(EE
HKS$'000 HK$000
TET TEL
1,742 2,722

FAF1RE2E 2 AU BB

VEREEMSEEZSMTA
(GFEIMTETR) - ERRETE
RBEINEETE - ZFhHETEE
ENARABRIT SIS 8UE -
TERERVEEERBE G 2
RS T ANHIZRE LN
BHRE - W—ERTANAAEM
FLIBERBAZBGRIEA -
AZERTARASZ R -

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements 4. BEEEHh TR HE

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of
the Group are discussed below.

(a) Provision for impairment of loan to a related
company and trade and other receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of loan to a
related company and trade and other receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of risk of default and
expected credit losses which involved management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the Group's past collection history of receivables,
existing market condition as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. If the
financial conditions of any individual counterparty
were determined to be deteriorated, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b) Provision for impairment of inventories

(c)

The management of the Group reviews the
marketability of inventory items at the end of each
reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no
longer suitable for sale. The management estimates the
net realisable value for inventories based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-
by-product basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes provision for obsolete items.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group tests where the property, plant and
equipment have suffered any impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note 2(e). The
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
has been determined as the higher of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. The recoverable
amount of the property, plant and equipment is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management. Key
assumptions used in the financial budgets include gross
profit margin, net profit margin, sales growth rate and
discount rate. As a result of the impairment assessment,
no impairment charge was necessary as the recoverable
amount calculated based on value-in-use exceeds its
carrying value.

B B R W

4. BARETHLTH R @

(b) 758

(c)

SR E R

REBEEENS ZMAREZT
TEEZ%ﬁm A BTER RTE

HEHE B RO B T
BiE EBRETERBRMHA %
SERKEATMREFEE 2 #
RFE - REERFS2WMARYET
BEMETTESZ  UTHBRG
RE{E 1 -

MR - BB RRENETHRE

*Eﬂ%W%IZ( VT B &R IR - ?E?
EHIER L RAREE R
5277"1//{1451@51 ZK?%X!‘JETW%
BB REEESHERE - !
TR 55 N 5%t 00 P R Bl 2 5B B W TE 7
HERBEREAALBEREHENX
AREFHREE - WFE  BEX
EQ%E’J—IW@%%EIEE'ETFEWTETE
STHEETER c LA ERENER
Bt/ B S TR E AT AT Eﬁ%mbi
TERl - MISTEE R EANEERRK

BREREME - FHE - HERRX
IR R - BEFGHHNERE @ H

RERME R E B E Ay AT E &5
HERREEE - FEFH TR
B4 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 # @



Segment information

The Group determines its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker
("CODM") that are used to make strategic decisions. The
CODM has been identified as the executive directors of
the Company. The CODM assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of the results of
the segments. Finance income and costs, and corporate
income and expenses are not included in the results for each
operating segment that is reviewed by the CODM. Other
information provided to the CODM is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the financial statements.

During the year, the Group has two reportable segments,
which are trading of pipes and fittings (“Trading of pipes
and fittings”) and manufacture and sale of biomass pellet
fuel products (“Biomass Pellet fuel products”). The following
summary describes the operations in each of the Group's
reportable segments.

Trading of pipes and fittings includes wholesale, retail and
logistics operations substantially in Hong Kong and Macau.

Biomass pellet fuel products are contributed by a subsidiary
of the Group, &/ B F8EIR B BR 2 7] (Guizhou Zhongguan
New Energy Limited*), which manufactures and sells biomass
pellet fuel products in the PRC.

Z For identification purpose only
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5.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information (Continued)

The segment information for the years ended 31 December

2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Revenue
Results of reportable segments

Reconciliation of results of reportable
segments to profit for the year

Results of reportable segments
Unallocated income
Unallocated expenses

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Tax expense

Profit for the year

Other segment information:
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Net gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Provision for impairment of property,
plant and equipment
Reversal of provision for inventories, net
Provision for impairment of financial assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

WA
DRRE
IRRRRFE RN

PHEE
ADERA
ARt

EHUH
BBA
AR

HAER
PR H

REERN

B2 sER:
0% BERREORE

EVAENER

HENS - BELREL
Yrer#eR

W% BERREHERE

FERRDEFE
TRAEMRERE
ERERERE

B B R W

2 EER @

Hz—

F_EER_FT-NFt_A

=t+—BLEZoEBERAT

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HECS-BFT-A=1-ALER

Reportable segments
2N
Continuing  Discontinued
operation operation
&2 | &1t
EEXY EEXY
Trading of Biomass Total
pipesand  pellet fuel  reportable
fittings products  segments  Unallocated Total
BER EVEEBER 280
-t REER AHAE AOE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
F#T  FET  TET  TET  TEE
497,295 m 497,572 - 497,572
52,021 (16,115) 35,906 - 35,906
300
(20,241)
15,965
8.276
(6,871)
17,370
(2,466)
14,904
3,551 1,088 4,639 35 4,674
51 - 51 - 51
- (15) (15) - (15)
- 9,744 9,744 - 9,744
(1,334) - (1,334) - (1,334)
409 3,124 3,533 - 3,533
25,430 - 25,430 - 25,430
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

5.

Segment information (Continued)

Revenue
Results of reportable segments

Reconciliation of results of reportable
segments to profit for the year

Results of reportable segments
Unallocated losses
Unallocated expenses

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Tax expense

Profit for the year

Other segment information:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Provision for and write-off of
inventories, net
Reversal of impairment of financial assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

KA
DHRE

IRERRFERNNER

PRER
AOERR
AKX

geEn
FHBA
FHER

BATRN
PR

REERN

R ER:
% BERREORE

RN AENEH
HENE  BERREZ
BiRR

FREGENMETE

ERAEMHEDR
ERERERE
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5. LR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-T-NETZA=T-BLERE
Reportable segments
2571
Continuing  Discontinued
operation operation
5 ’iE
BERH BEXH
Trading of Biomass Total
pipes and pellet fuel reportable
fittings products segments  Unallocated Total
FER  EWEER 25
EHES R ER DEvEE RAE B3
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TéT et FEr  TET TER
527,552 3,819 531,371 - 531,371
30,867 (7,213) 23,654 - 23,654
(235)
(19,417)
4,002
10,343
(8,471)
5,874
(1,444)
4,430
4,048 2,174 6,222 35 6,257
34 - 34 - 34
4 - 4 - 4
4,253 - 4,253 - 4,253
(571) - (571) - (571)
25,737 - 25,737 - 25,737




Segment information (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2020

and 2019 are as follows:

As at 31 December 2020

Non-current assets
Current assets

Total Assets

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Total Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019

Non-current assets
Current assets

Total Assets

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Total Liabilities

R-B-ZF5+-A=1-H

FRPEE
REEE

R-F-NF+-A=1—H

FRYEE
RBEE

REE

FRBAMR

nBEE

BAaE

SR IR AR
5. ZHER@®
R-FB_Z2FER-_FB-AFT_-A
=+—RZAMEERBBHAT
Reportable segments
RTEHHDH

Trading Biomass

of pipes pellet fuel
and fittings products  Unallocated Total

BER ENEER
BhES REER L k]
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
125,526 - 77,141 203,267
582,765 642 29,058 612,465
708,291 642 106,799 815,732
(102,014) - - (102,014)
(144,186) (5,132) (3,178) (152,496)
(246,200) (5.132) (3.178) (254,510)

Reportable segments
BT 2HRNHH

Trading Biomass

of pipes pellet fuel
and fittings products Unallocated Total

EER EME BN
EHES AR E AR s
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FIET TET FET
149,961 10,559 78,299 238,819
519,463 5,188 31,900 556,551
669,424 15,747 110,199 795,370
(120,716) (305) = (121,021)
(122,647) (4,039) (1,627) (128,313)
(243,363) (4,344) (1,627) (249,334)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR BA B A B R

5. Segment information (Continued) 5. DEER @
Geographical information b & 2 B E R
The Group is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group's revenues REBZNES - REBRMEHEH
from external customers by geographical location are REINEEFRIRALT -

detailed below:

Revenue

L'ON

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1t—HLEE

Restated
K E5
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong B 460,081 480,027
Macau R 37,214 47,525
Continuing operation FHEEERET 497,295 527,552
Discontinued operation BRI E RS 277 3,819
497,572 531,371

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location are REEZMESHOIERBDEEDT ¢

detailed below:

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Hong Kong BA 202,052 227,039
Mainland China I E At 1,215 11,780
203,267 238,819
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers:

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
revenue of the Group was recognised at a point in time.

Liabilities related to contracts with customers:

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to
contracts with customers:

Contract liabilities EREaE—TEWR (Ff:E27)

— receipts in advance (Note 27)

Contract liabilities for sales of goods contracts have
decreased by HK$1,804,000 due to a decrease in overall
contract activities.

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities:

Revenue recognised that was
included in the contract liabilities
balance at the beginning of the year

ERERREA

FH A R B EHER

B B R W

7 HRRE R ()
HEFSRNBADE :

—h¢+_ﬂ:+ Etﬁ& REH
B B S MBI PRI R AR ©

HEFAEREHANERS
AEECERUTEEFARABENE
f&.
2020 2019
—ECEF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
12,589 14,393

HEEWARNARABERD T
1,804,000/ 7T * ‘amNEEERE
AT o

TRER T EAXHE HERERORAS
B LEEEARAGERR

2020 2019
= i —TNF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET T
9,245 8,086
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

6. Other gains, net

Net exchange gain

Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Hong Kong and Macau Government
grants

Others

EE ¢ W e 3 50

HEWE - ME KRB ZER
R

BAfBEFABRZER
BEZ WS

BARBEFABSZEH
BEZBREMEA

B8 MRFIB T B

Hith
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H Uk 25 F 58
2020 2019
S =
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
935 206
- (@)
7 109
70 108
8,500 =
- 225
9,512 644




7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

Expenses by nature

Operating profit is arrived at after charging/(crediting): K=

Cost of inventories sold (Note 18)
Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 15)
Auditor’s remuneration:
— Audit services
— Non-audit services
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (Note 13)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 14)
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8)
Short-term and low-value lease
expenses (Note 14)
Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment
of financial assets
(Reversal of)/Provision for and
write-off of inventories, net
Other expenses

Representing:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses

Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment
of financial assets

7. BAXME

g

BEHEZFERA (HFE18)
B EEMEH (1515

2 Gl
— EZRS
— IEE R
Y% - B RREITE (HR13)

EREEENE (HiE14)

B TRMFX (FiEs)
EAMEEEREER (14

SRMEENRERE(TE)
FE(EE) BERMEFE

HAFISC

(A

HEMA

HHE Mo SRR
—REITHRER
EREENRERE (D)

A T5H0RR, (GEA) T 3R B &=

Restated

KB

2020 2019
—ECEE —T-hEF
HKS$000 HK$°000
FET FET
348,878 380,013
51 34
1,023 1,023
170 180
3,586 4,083
25,430 25,737
64,636 65,223
762 1,726
409 (571)
(1,334) 4,253
31,116 35,280
474,727 516,981
356,804 393,860
16,562 20,268
100,952 103,424
409 (571)
474,727 516,981
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

8. Employee benefit expenses

Wages, salaries and other benefits

Pension costs — defined contribution
plans

Share-based payment (Notes 23(b)
and 24)

8. BERAMX

(a) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include two (2019:
two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 32. The emoluments paid to
the remaining three (2019: three) individuals were as
follows:

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits

Discretionary bonus

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

Share-based payment

BYBTEAL

@ SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B h BB E R 2 7

e kHEERREREN

PR A7 AR EERE B0 15 35K

RIS RA—ERHEREE

Restated
KE5
2020 2019
= —TNF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
T%  HeREMET 62,605 62,923
RIRE A — ERRE TS
2,031 2,295
LARGAD B EERE 2 3R
(Fi5E23(0) 224) - 5
64,636 65,223
() ElUBREHAL

RER  KEBRUSSHEALTE
B (CE—NF: ZADES -
HESENHT328 DR - X
RFEB=R(ZE—HE : =60)
AT ZHST :

2020 2019

b et 22 —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
4,215 4,433

314 1,189

54 54

- 2

4,583 5,678




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AT SR
8. Employee benefit expenses (Continued) 8. EEwRAMMEXZ®@®
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (a) EluBREHFEALTE

The emoluments of the three (2019: three) individuals —H(CZE-NE =R)ESFA

fell within the following bands: T2 HBN T 5 E
2020 2019
it i %2 —T-NF
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/87C— 1,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001;8 7T —2,000,000/8 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T —2,500,000/8 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 — 3,000,000/ 7T - 1

(b) Senior management remuneration by band (b) EREEAETM EE
The remuneration of senior management fell within the BREBABZHHMN T T4
following bands: 1

2020 2019
it g 22 —T-NF
Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 - 1,000,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001%75—2,000,000/8 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T — 3,000,000/ 7T - 2
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 75— 3,500,000/ 7T - =
HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000 3,500,00178 7T —4,000,000/ 7T - 1
5 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

ok

10.

Finance income, net

RIT M EAR R SWA
RITEEZH S

Bank and other interest income

Interest expense on bank borrowings

Interest expense on lease liabilities
(Note 14)

Tax expense

Current taxation: BIHATH I8
Hong Kong profits tax BEMEH
Overseas tax YEINLIE
Over provision in prior years AEFEZR
Total current tax BNEATR IH 4828
Deferred taxation (Note 26): FEIEFIE (Fi3E26) -
Origination and (provision for)/reversal ~ ERFERE 7 E4E
of temporary differences K (B#) /B4
Tax expense FITH H

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

@ SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B h BB E R 2 7

9. BMBWRAFHE

HERE A S (HIFE14)

Restated

KE5

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
(8,276) (10,339)
1,522 2,335
5,349 6,136
(1,405) (1,868)

10. HIEZH

Restated

EET

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT—NEF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FEIT
2,979 777

149 408
(316) (84)

2,812 1,101

(39) 429

2,773 1,530

BEEFETR AT NGRS IR
#E16.5% (ZF—NF : 16.5%) TR °
EINRIB TR IEF R (AT B F R A
BAEESEEBER 2 RITHE
=i



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

10. Tax expense (Continued) 10. BIEXZH @)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong
Kong profits tax rate as follows:

Profit before income tax TR & A

Notional tax on profit before BRBRIR AR B ERTIIA
taxation, calculated at the rates (F AR R AR B
applicable to profits in the iRl p T

jurisdictions concerned
Effect of different tax rates in other EalE s TR &R

jurisdictions -7

Unrecognised tax losses RERTIAEE

Tax effect of income not subject to BARBZ WA Z IR &
taxation

Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT 2 T H 2 FiE 2
for taxation purposes
Over provision in prior years NEFFEZIR

Tax expense BIIA H

AEEBBBRADG N 2 IR H R RE
REBBNEHEMAEZERTEL

Restated

==l

2020 2019

b et 22 —T-NF

HKS$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

33,485 13,083

5,360 1,987
(237) (430)

240 9268
(2,957) (1,587)

682 676
(315) (84)

2,773 1,530
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o S A W

11.

12.

Earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
is based on the profit for the year/(loss) attributable to
equity holders and weighted average number of shares with
adjustments where applicable as follows:

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company from continuing
operation

Loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company from discontinued
operation

A AR

FEAEGHER

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company for the purpose
of basic earnings per share

Number of shares RGEE
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic

earnings/(loss) per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of dilutive potential ordinary shares arising
from the Company’s share options. There was no diluted
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2020
as there was no potential dilutive effect. Diluted earnings
per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 equal basic
earnings per share as the exercise of the outstanding share
options would be anti-dilutive.

Dividend

At the Board meeting held on 24 March 2021, the Board did
not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

@ SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B h BB E R 2 7

11.

SEEBEERB I ANRELS

RIEBBR 2 NABIES

AEEREARNZAATE
A AREEF

SHEERERRN, (BR) 2
BB 2 It TR 2K

12.

ZREF,(FE8)

TRIIRE S RE AR REERF
TR PO 2 5 A B R (85
18) REBTEBRZ WET LR (R
B FAR%)

2020 2019
—g-®F B NF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
30,712 11,553
(10,560) (4,763)
20,152 6,790
Thousands Thousands
Fig FAE
1,333,111 1,333,270

SAHEREERNE  EHERTEAE
Bz P RR B IE AR - DARERAT
BREHE N 2R THERERRREE S
B mREBE-_E-_TF+-_A=1+—
BILFERABEEHEXE - FTARE
BREERN - HE—FT-NAF+_H
=t+—BLEFE  BITERITEERE
AREEZE  NUSRkESRNAE
IEEAREF

RE
RoE-—F=A-+MARTHNES
ezt SFETERREHE-F
—EE+-A=t+—BItFEZREK
BE(CE-NF: E) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ B R R

13. Property, plant and equipment 13. ¥ - BEREE
Plant, Office
machinery fumiture,
and  Leasehold fixtures and Officc  Computer Motor
equipment  improvements fittings ~ equipment  equipment vehicles Total

iR BE BR  B0EER
Rafk  WREB  KERBR  XERR  EERG g #8
SO0 HKSOD  WKSOMD  HKSUMD HKSUMD  HKSOMD HKSOW
T&x &x &7 f&x T&x 7&r &x

Cost s

At 1 January 2020 N-32F-F-H 9,649 16,705 270 13 4,969 17,895 52,061
Bichange differences EiER n 3 9 5 3 - 85
Additions HE 2% - - - 101 - 363
Disposals & (54) - - - - - (4
At31 December 2020 R-F-FET2Azt-B 10,229 17,081 281 128 501 17,895 5B
Accumulated depreciation Ziffig

At 1 January 2020 \Z2-%F-F-8 4115 12,003 1426 51 4,662 121 34,385
xchange differences EiER 350 3 ] 4 3 - 79
Charge for the year rERAE 568 m m 19 119 2948 461
Impairment o REBE 5061 36 Il 3 - - 9,744
Disposals e 0] - - - - - )
At 31 December 2020 W-B-EEt2f=1-H 10,105 16,804 2,667 119 4,784 15,070 49,589
Net book value BE¥E

At 31 December 2020 W-B-2E12AZt+-B 14 i) 150 y i 2805 3634

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 3 @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

13. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 13. Y% - BEREE @)

Plant, (Office
machinery furniture,
and  Leasehold  firtures and Office  Computer Motor
equipment  improvements fitngs ~ equipment  equipment vehicles Total
fi %2 HE  BOEGL-
ke WERE RERRE BR Ehite i ]
S 000 #5000 S 000 5000 #3000 Hs000 HS 000
FAT Fér FAT Far FAT FAT FAT
Cost A
At 1 January 2019 NE-NF-A-H 9,661 16,723 2718 124 4909 15,6% 49831
Bichange differences EREE 97) (100 26) il 1) = )
Additions HE 214 236 30 - b1 2019 280
Disposals i} (129 (15) 0 - - (80) (363)
At31 December 2019 R=B-1Et2Rzt+-B 9649 16,705 270 13 4,969 17,89 52,061
Accumulated depreciation Ziffig
At 1 January 2019 A=E-n5-A-H 3269 10,638 1,063 B 4531 8925 28454
Bxchange differences EiER (12) (26) ] - (1) = (#7)
Charge forthe year rERAE %7 15% mn e 132 30 6,57
Disposals it (19 (183 (1 = = (6 (9
At 31 December 2019 R-E-nE+-B=1-R 4115 12,003 1426 5 4,662 12122 34385
Net book value FEFE
At 31 December 2019 REF-AETZA=1-B 5534 470 129 6 0 5773 17676
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13. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ B R R

Depreciation was recorded in the following categories:

General and administrative expenses

Depreciation recognised in continuing
operation (Note 7)

Depreciation recognised in
discontinued operation

Total depreciation

Lease

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

13. ¥I5% - BERRE @
FEIRATHEXH

Restated

KET

2020 2019

223 —F-NF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

— R RITEE A 3,586 4,083

SIEEIBEBRER L

e (BIsE7) 3,586 4,083
RIEEBEBTRRRZITE

1,088 2,174

HrERss 4,674 6,257

14. HE

statement of financial position

(a) FEPBRRKRPEANTHE

The consolidated statement of financial position shows HREMBRAREVIATEBREE 2
the following amounts relating to leases: A
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—EIERF RZE—NEF
+=A=+—-HB +=ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Buildings BF 113,809 134,128
Equipment B 1,168 1,352
Total right-of-use assets PR ERE 114,977 135,480
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current ME 21,637 21,355
Non-current et 98,979 117,340
Total lease liabilities HEBERRE 120,616 138,695
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 B R P T
14. Lease (Continued) 14. HE #®)
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) HREMBERRAKRPERNEEE
statement of financial position (Continued) (&,
Additions to the right-of-use assets amounted to FREEENEEZE-_S-2F+=
HK$5,765,000 during the year ended 31 December A=+—HB1FZEE 5,765,000
2020 (2019: HK$2,907,000). BT (ZZE—N%F : 2,907,000/
JT) °
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) FREWBEKRTEANESE

income statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to lease:

Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE (M:E7)

(Note 7)

Buildings BgF

Equipment B

Interest expense on lease HEEBF AT
liabilities (Note 9) (P 5E9)

Short-term and low-value lease REREEEHEHEERR
expenses (Note 7) (BF3E7)

The total cash payment for lease amounted to
HK$29,118,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: HK$30,393,000).
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HARERZINTEEEEZS

o
]

For the year ended 31 December

BZE+-—A=+—HLEE

Restated

EET

2020 2019
—®-®F  —E-AF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
24,985 25,367
445 370
25,430 25,737
5,349 6,136
762 1,726

HE_Z2-_FTF+_-_A=+—H
IHFEFEHEEZR &R EAHE
£29,118,000/8 L (ZE—NF ¢
30,393,000/ 7T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. Lease (Continued)

15.

(c)

(d)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these
are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, retail
shops and staff quarters. Rental contracts are typically
made for fixed periods of 1 to 10 years but may have
extension options as described below. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain various
terms and conditions.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property leases across the Group. These
terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in
terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension
and termination options held are exercisable only by the
Group and not by the respective lessor.

Intangible assets

Trademark [GEE

Opening net book amount YR AR EDFE
Addition NE
Accumulated amortisation g £

Closing net book amount HAR A BREDFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, amortisation expense
of HK$51,000 (2019: HK$34,000) is included in “cost of
sales” (Note 7).

14. HE ®)

B B R W

() AEENESEBRAEARS

=X

AEEHEZEARAE RE T
EEREBTIES - HO—REER
HI1 2104 - HERTBEARIR R XX Pt
BAEMRE - EESTIRE R ELE
W BB E SR T RIRR &R -

(d) FERAILRER

AEENF D EEERSEBEM
RIDRIERE - BLETNERBE S
ERKERERNREREIEES
BRAE o REDD BT R EE
ERAKETRE - MIFRERAL
HATTE »

15. BILEE

2020 2019
—E-EF PR £
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

477 =

- 511

(51) (34)

426 477

Bz

FEL-AS+—AILF

£ B R51,0008 T (ZE—H
F 1 34,0007 70) BT ATSHE A (Bt

iE7) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

16.

17.

Subsidiaries 16.

Details of principal subsidiaries which, in the Directors’
opinion, materially affect the results and/or net assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, are set out in Note 35.

Financial instruments by category 17.
Financial assets included in BIEEFEMBERRTRNG
consolidated statement of SRMEE
financial position:
Financial assets at amortised cost N HN AT EN S RMEE
Trade receivables, deposits and other B SRGIA « 1o REHA
receivables FEW IR

BEHEMRERE (faE21)
EHEMERITE (M5E21)
B e RRITHES (HRE22)

Pledged certificate of deposit (Note 21)
Pledged bank deposits (Note 21)
Cash and bank balances (Note 22)

BARBEFARRZ
R EE (f5£20)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 20)

Total 1EER

@ SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B h BB E R 2 7

o) PN

EERANAREY $AR AN —F
—EEI A=+ —BZFAEMNE
w2 TEHEARZHERRANE
35¢

REFESNEMIA
2020 2019
—g-s5  —T-Nf
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAT FHT
217,117 213,429
10,000 10,000
36,000 36,000
189,088 157,683
1,742 2,722
453,947 419,834




17. Financial instruments by category (Continued)

18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial liabilities included in
consolidated statement of
financial position:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables
Borrowings (Note 25)

Lease liabilities (Noted 14(a))

Total

Inventories

Raw materials
Merchandises

At 31 December 2020, the provision for impairment of
inventories amounted to approximately HK$13,399,000

(2019: HK$16,223,000).

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$348,878,000 (2019:

HK$380,013,000) (Note 7).

B B R W

17. ZEFESNERTAE@®

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT—hEF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
BIEEFETHEMRRERN
S@as

SRR AT 2SR AaE
B 5N EM TR 51,795 42,579
& (KI7E25) 56,984 47,384
AEaE FiE14a) 120,616 138,695
R 229,395 228,658

18. Z&

2020 2019
—ECEF —T—NF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
=R 67 14
P& 192,101 191,512
192,168 191,526

RZZ_ZTF+=_A=+—0 " BER
ERELE 13,399,000 T (ZF— N

£ 1 16,223,000/67T) °

RAZEWHNABERARB N ZFE
AR 7ZN3E348,878,00058 7T (ZE— 114 -

380,013,000 7T) (FI5E7) -
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o S A W

19. Trade and other receivables 19. EZ R EMEWRFE

2020 2019
—E-ZF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 [EUGRIA 127,586 121,007
Less: loss allowance (Note 3(b)(ii)) R ES IR (M EE3(b) (i) (110) =
127,476 121,007
Prepayments SEENES 50,576 26,920
Amount due from a non-controlling FEU —7 FEVEAR AR R SRIE
shareholder (Note 30(c)) (FFzE30(c)) - 3,106
Rental deposits HEZS 6,242 6,476
Other receivables, deposits and HibEWHIE - ek
other assets HEib&EE 6,988 5,732
Less: loss allowance (Note 3(b)(ii)) B EstE R (B EE3 (b)) (1,295) (1,121)
62,511 41,113
Loan to a related company BT —HEEAA
(Note 30(d)) (MtE(30(d)) 77,830 78,229
Less: loss allowance (Note 3(b)(ii)) L BRI (BRE3 b)) (124) =
77,706 78,229
Total of trade and other receivables, B 5 REMEWFIE -« Ze
deposits and prepayments MBI AERER 267,693 240,349
Less: included in non-current assets W BAEEIERBEES
Rental deposits and other assets HEREREMEE (6,524) (6,957)
Loan to a related company ERT—HEEAR
(Note 30(d)) (MiEE(30(d)) (77,706) (78,229)
Included in current assets BREEREEESF 183,463 155,163
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other receivables, B REWHEIA - EMERGIE - Re Kk
deposits and prepayments approximate their fair values. AR R EEASEERE AR EEME

As at 31 December 2020, included in other receivables, loan
to a third party of HK$1,419,000 (2019: HK$1,121,000) was

impaired and provided for.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B R R I T
19. Trade and other receivables (Continued) 19. B 5 & H fth B UL TR (41)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other REEB S REMBERFIAZRESRE
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: TS EHEHE
2020 2019
—B-EHF —T-hEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#ET FHET
HK$ BT 137,873 128,463
RMB AR 689 5,161
usb ET 127,769 104,491
MOP RPTHE 1,358 2,230
Others Hftb 4 4
267,693 240,349
The Group generally grants credit period of 60-90 days to its AEE—RETEEREMHESHEBE
customers for its trading of pipes and fittings operation. The FZEEHAR60EI0K - & 5 EUGRIE
ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on the due REHB 2 BRETOT
date is as follows:
2020 2019
gt 2.2 —ZE-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within credit period =EHN 83,145 69,260
1 to 30 days 1RXZE30K 27,323 24,463
31 to 60 days 31 RE60X 11,345 13,094
61 to 90 days 61 KE90K 3,253 7,667
91 to 120 days 91 KX£120K 417 3,704
Over 120 days HBiE8120K% 2,103 2,819
127,586 121,007
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B B R W

19. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The closing loss allowance for all trade receivables reconcile

19. EZ R EMEBYRKIE @)
P8 8 5 I WK IR B HA R 5 1R 3 S 1R

to the opening loss allowance are as follows: VEHE R BE BRI T -
HK$'000
FET
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2019 RZE-—NF+-A=+—8RE
under HKFRS 9 BN MEEREORAEIERE -
Loss allowance for trade receivables E 5 WG IB R B 1B R (110)

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables.

There was loss allowance of HK$110,000 for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and
the Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk and credit risk
can be found in Note 3.1.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the fair value of each class of receivables mentioned above.
Save as disclosed above, the Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

20. Financial assets at fair value through profit

(110)

AEBRBEEMEREERFE R
LA ERREEER  RFAEES
FEYR AN B EFEBANBEIE R
ﬁ o

RZZ-TF+-_A=+—H EFE
WK TR ) BSR4 /31 10,000/8 7T © (=
T-NFH\) -

BEHEZRYGIRRERASE @R
S BE LB K% A5 B L e O B R PR A
3.1°

W B2 BAREERRA DL ER

FEYKIRZ RA(E - B EXXATiEESD -
ARG B RS A AR (A

20. BAREEFABRZEMEE

or loss
2020 2019
= —TNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Investment funds at fair value — unlisted Z AR BEMNKEES —F LD 1,742 2,722
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21.

22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pledged bank deposits and certificate of
deposit

As at 31 December 2020, bank deposits of HK$36,000,000
(2019: HK$36,000,000) denominated in HK$ were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 25).

The effective interest rate on pledged bank deposits was
0.47% (2019: 1.83%) per annum and these deposits are
maturing within 13 to 155 days (2019: 13 to 156 days).

As at 31 December 2020, certificate of deposit of
HK$10,000,000 (2019: HK$10,000,000) was denominated in
HK$ and was pledged as collateral for the Group's banking
facilities (Note 25). The effective interest rate on the pledged
certificate of deposit is 1.22% (2019: 1.75%) per annum
and this deposit is maturing within 71 days (2019: 86 days).

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances e RIRITEEER
Maximum exposure to credit risk EERZNEREERR

B B R W

. CEARITERREFRE

R—_ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—8 -
36,000,000 0 (=& — L4 :

36,000,000/ 7T) AB TTEHE Z R1T1F
HEFURIER - tEAAEBRITEERE
&2 IR (BiisE25) ©

EEBETERZ2ERMNEAEF R
047%(ZZF—NF : 1.83%) ' LERF

RZEHANF13REIS5K(ZE—AN
$ P 13RE156K) °

RZZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—80 "
10,000,000 L (=T — AL F :
10,000,000/ 7T) AT TTEHE Z E 3R
BEFUER  (EAXEERITEESR
&2 AR (B &E25) » E%fﬁ%ﬁiﬁ%‘xﬁ
ERFNEAEL1.22% (BN
1.75%) ;mmﬁwuwwiu,ﬁm_
T—NF : 86K) o

22. & RBVITEER

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET T
189,088 157,683
188,853 157,516
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B B R W

22. Cash and bank balances (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and bank balances
are denominated in the following currencies:

HK$
RMB
usb
Others

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of these funds out of Mainland
China is subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed

by the PRC government.

23. Share capital

At 1 January and 31 December 2019

Repurchase of shares and cancelled
(Note)

At 31 December 2020

Note:

22.
BT
AR
e
Hit
23.

N-ZE—-h&E—HF—H
E+=—A=+—8~
BB A7 Ko wE 8 (P 5E)

RZE_TF+_A=+—H

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
repurchased a total of 1,004,000 ordinary shares of the Company at
an aggregate cost of approximately HK$86,444 (excluding expenses).
The highest price paid and the lowest price paid were HK$0.088
and HK$0.085 per share respectively. All repurchased shares were
cancelled and the issued share capital of the Company was reduced
by the nominal value of these shares accordingly. The premium
payable on repurchase was charged against the share premium.
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AEEZHE MRTTEHRZRESREE
AT E#EHE -

2020 2019
= —TNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
143,044 113,740
14,784 16,526
26,853 22,171
4,407 5,246
189,088 157,683

BAAREHE 2 BB SINE RS
ZEEELPEAM - AXPBEBUT
Btz INEE HIFEMEARIR -

iR Z<
Number of
shares issued
CRITRHOEE
thousands HK$'000
FAE FET
1,333,270 26,665
(1,004) (20)
1,332,266 26,645

BE—_Z-_ZHF+_-_A=+—BHI&EE K
NEIEEEA $£1,004,0000% A Q B @A - 42
AR 586,4447% 0 (M BIERY) - Frft
Z2E8RsEeER&EED R A0.0888 TR
0.08587T « = HPEIME 2 RN BT o M
AAElZ BBITRACHERZERMDZE
BT ABR - BB G B Z R ESRRRD
S (EFRR ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. Share capital (Continued)

The authorized share capital of the Company was
HK$500,000,000, comprising 25,000 million shares
with a par value of HK$0.02 per share. All issued shares
are fully paid.

The share option scheme approved by the shareholders
of the Company on 24 June 2004 (the “2004 Scheme")
has expired on 23 June 2014. Thereafter, no further
options will be granted under the 2004 Scheme but
the subsisting options granted thereunder prior to the
expiry date will continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of the 2004 Scheme. As at
31 December 2020, all share options granted under
prior to the 2004 Scheme lapsed.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 21 May 2015, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme
(the “2015 Scheme”) under which the directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible persons to
subscribe for the Company'’s shares subject to the terms
and conditions as stipulated therein. Unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, the 2015 Scheme will remain
valid for a period of 10 years from the date of its
adoption.

No share option under the 2015 Scheme was granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed, during the current year
nor outstanding as at 31 December 2020.

B B R W

23. IRZ& (#%)

RAEEFERZA /500,000,000
Br o BEBREE0.02B T
25,000,000,000% 485K - 1A B 3
TROHEEHE -

RAARRERZ-ZZZWEFE XA
—tmAdE ERES S ((=F
ZHFHEDER =T —FA
—+F=REMm ° & - SEREC
TEEFEBROERE - AR
[Eiw B BRRTAR IR — T TN BIK
TR 2 P S S A AR B 2t Tl
TiTE -BE_ZFT_FTF+=-A
=t+—8  FARE_ZTOF
FHERDBERED KX

RZZE—RAFRA=+— Elﬁﬁ%ﬂz
AATRIBRRBAFRE L AR
R B L SR AR FTEE AR FE R T 2 (F: S
—RFFED B ARFRES
AREBRATRLBRE - SR
BARRRG @ WESX=ZT—RF
+2\J%EEZ1I KA FTARBR © BR
BITEUHESASETIN - ZFE—RF5T
%Hﬂﬂ@ﬁ%m%ﬁﬁﬂt?r-i—iﬂﬁﬁaﬁ%&
AR -

RN B RS R RE
—hFREIERL  1TE =

R - TERBEEN T -F

F+ZA=+—HRRETE
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o S A W

23. Share capital (Continued) 23. RZ& (4@)

The Company was authorised to grant share options
under the 2015 Scheme for subscription of up to a total
of 133,327,000 shares, representing 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of adoption.
The directors of the Company are authorised at their
absolute discretion, to invite any eligible participants as
defined in the Scheme, to take up options to subscribe
for shares in the Company. The subscription price will
be determined by the Board, but shall be at least the
highest of (a) the closing price of shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date on which the relevant options are deemed to
be granted and accepted in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme (“the Commencement Date"”), which
must be a day on which the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
is open for the business of dealing in securities (“Trading
Day”); (b) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet for the five Trading Days immediately
preceding the Commencement Date; and (c) the
nominal value of the shares. A consideration of HK$10
is payable on acceptance of the grant of option. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2015 Scheme may not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of adoption of the 2015 Scheme. The
number of shares may be refreshed by the approval of
the shareholders and the refreshed limit of the number
of shares must not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the approval
of the refreshed limit.

As a result of the share consolidation become effective,
the exercise price and the number of consolidated
shares to be issued upon the exercise of the outstanding
options granted under the 2004 Scheme have been
adjusted in accordance with the terms of the 2004
Scheme and Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules.
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RAREREREBE-_S—RAF:
SREBEREAREZEZ A AL
133,327,0008% /%17 + (hIAEA B
HARBBEBITRAZI10% ° &
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AER S BESEHIATEARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

outstanding share options (2019: 1,000,000).

The estimated fair value of share options granted is
based on the Binomial model. The significant inputs into
the models are as follows:

Date of grant B
Exercise price 7B
Expected volatility SELENL
Option life RERRtE S HA

Annual risk free interest rate

R R

Dividend yield Z=E &
Fair value Nh(EME

The expected volatility measured at the standard
deviation is based on the historical data of the weekly
share price movement of comparable companies of the
Company.

R B R R I T
23. Share capital (Continued) 23. RZ& (4@)
(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) BRRHESTE(F)
Movement in the number of share options outstanding FR - WARITEERESRE <25
during the year are as follows: W
Exercise Granted
Price 31 December and 31 December
Date of grant Date of maturity HKS 2019 accepted Exercised Lapsed 2020
“E2-0F “2°%%
e T=A e:
RLAS 2R BT =t-0 ERHIEH B2 BAH =t-H
5 May 2010 4 May 2020
“Z-ZERALA “Z-ZERANA 083 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000 -
Total2% 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) -
As at 31 December 2020, there are no more R-E-_FF+_-_A=+—H8"

BEREAITEMNERE(CE—N
£ : 1,000,000) °

ERDBEENGET A BERE
“HEABERATE - WAKER
MER28T

5 May 2010
—g-%%
HAEA

HK$0.83

55%

10 years

106

2.86%

3.10%

HK$0.26 ~ HK$0.38

BEREEGEZAHKEBHERAK
RAZ AL AR ERNERES
HESL B -
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A BB A B R
23. Share capital (Continued) 23. RZ& (4@)
(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) FERRHERTE|(E)

()  On 5 May 2010, 1,600,000 share options were ) R-ZE—ZFTFRARHHB K
offered to and accepted by a Director and an SEMESKEEENTE
employee, with an exercise price of HK$0.83 and FERE491,600,00017 B ALHE
an option period of 10 years commencing from 5 ZEBREZ1THE/0.83
May 2010 and expiring on 4 May 2020 (both days BT RERERAR ST F
inclusive). The options granted to the grantees are B ZTFRAAARMAK
vested in stages and be exercised in the following ZE-E_THERAMAIE
manner: (BEEEMB) - BT EE

AR ERIERGDPEREE
WHRA T A RITE
Maximum percentage Period for exercise of the relevant
of the options exercisable percentage of the options
ATEZBRERSEIL TEAEBERER DL ZHR
20% 5/11/2010 - 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2011 - 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2012 - 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2013 - 4/5/2020
20% 5/11/2014 - 4/5/2020

(i) Vesting of certain options granted to certain iy RTETEEZE THKRE
employees are subject to achievement of profit BEIRNBERAEET
target. EHAEER -
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B B R W

24. Reserves 24. f#1E
Share-
Capital Merger based
Share reserve reserve  Statutory Other  Exchange  payment Retained
premium (notel) (notelj) reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
by
ERgE AR RERN
ROEE () i) tERRE AEBR O EXER MRER  RER 2
HS000 HS000 HS000 HKS 000 HS000 000 Hs 000 HKS 000 0
At 1 anuary 2019 RIE-NF-A-B 16618 IS 370 U 109 (58) 4% M0 51000
Proft for the year REER - - - - - - - 6,790 6,790
Curency transaton differences ~ §HEEEE - - - - - (é25) - = (423)
Share-based payment IR BRI - - - - - - 5 - 5
Actuarial gain on postemployment  BERABRIER RS
benefi obiations, netof tax W& MREER - - - - 636 - - - 636
Transfer upon apse of shere optons BB e - = = = = = (012 40m2 =
At 31 December 2019 and RN
1 January 2020 TZRA=T-Rk
ZRoRE-F-A 126,618 3115 3700 U 1,731 (483) 349 351,102 517,156
Proftfor the year REERT - - - - - - - 20,18 20,152
Corency translaton differences ~ SEAEEE - - - - - 338 - - 3
Repurchase of shares and cancelled - R 354 (66) - - - - - - - (66)
Actuarial gan on postemployment BB EHEAHRE
benefi obigations, netof tax Wi MTER - - - - 18 - - - 14
Transferupon lapse of share options~ FREER B TR - - - - - - (349) 30 -
At 31 December 2020 .3
+2h=1-A 126,552 3115 3700 U 1915 (145) - 371,603 537,764
Notes: Bt -
() The capital reserve of the Group mainly represents contribution () AEBZEAFHEZERR—NAANLE

(ii)

from the shareholders in connection with the acquisition of the
remaining interests in a subsidiary in 1999.

The merger reserve of the Group arising from the Group
reorganisation is determined by the difference between the
nominal value of shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation and the nominal value of the

Company'’s shares deemed to have been issued.

(i)

Wi B AR s MR ERIRE
B ER -

FEEREHEAMEE 2 & HER -
THEEEBEAEAZ B R RRNEE
HBER BT Z AR BN EEREM
ZEFEE
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25. Borrowings 25. B E
2020 2019
—ECRF —T-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current RED
Trust receipt loans, secured (note (7)) B EUIEE R (B EEO)) 28,623 35,724
Trust receipt loans, unsecured EIR R ETURIEER 28,361 11,660
56,984 47,384
Notes: Ktat
(i)  The carrying amounts of the trust receipt loans approximate () FERUBEERCEOSEREFEENS LTE
their fair values. As at 31 December 2020, the banking facilities e R TF+-_A=+—H
were granted with an aggregate amount of approximately BERRIRTTELE 42%H49/3267,300,000
HK$267,300,000 (2019: HK$290,700,000) of which B (ZZE— 4 : 290,700,000/
approximately HK$206,300,000 (2019: HK$239,000,000) had 7o)+ B #49206,300,0008 L (=
not been utilized. These banking facilities were secured by T — AL : 239,000,000/ 7T) & &
corporate guarantees, bank deposits of HK$36,000,000 (2019 BA ZERITMEAARER
HK$36,000,000) and certificate of deposit of HK$10,000,000 $R1T1F3X#36,000,0008 L (=&
(2019: HK$10,000,000). — L% : 36,000,000/8 7T) K17 K&
#10,000,0008 T (ZF—LF :
10,000,00078 7T) {EHE R -
(i) The borrowings are denominated in the following currency: (i) EEUTIEES|E :
2020 2019
—_ 7 — ﬂi :ﬁ_ni
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
HK$ BT 56,984 47,384
(iiy  The effective interest rates (per annum) of bank borrowings at (i) REBHRER  RITEEZERFHE
the financial reporting date are as follows: (N
2020 2019
—ET-EHF —ZT-hF
Trust receipt loans EREBIRER 2.36% 4.26%
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LR IS Ee R B RE
26. Deferred taxation 26. EIEHIE
2020 2019
—E-ZF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled BRT+ZERREE L
after 12 months BIETRIEAE (1,508) (1,816)
Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences under the ELEHIBHA B EEN BN B ARE
liability method using tax rates of the relevant subsidiaries MEESRFABEE cHRMER 2
applicable to the period when the asset is expected to be RE (R HREACEMRELDEM)
realised or the liability to be settled, based on tax rates that TER SR -
have been substantively enacted by the financial reporting
date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a BB ATERER T BN ER R 1R & 2= BR A HR
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against MIBAEERE - MEERIBEERETE
current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and MIBAGEYRA—MBEEBZ - —K
liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same taxation ERBATK T RAMNERT AT B ER
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable SRELUREAEE - RIRIREHIEE &
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on BLRIET IR BB G AR o
a net basis.
The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows: IRERIAAR B 2 S FEET ¢
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January n—HA—H (1,816) (1,352)
Credited/(charged) to income statement FEUEERFF A (F1KB)
— Continuing operation (Note 10) —FEEEFER (HIzE10) 39 (429)
— Discontinued operation (Note 33) — 4R\ B R (FI5E33) 307 86
Charged to equity e IR (36) (126)
Exchange differences b 5 =5 () 5
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H (1,508) (1,816)
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B B R W

26. Deferred taxation (Continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

26. IEAEBLIH ()
EERABEERABERFRZEECR

FFRRERBE R AT &)
™

Deferred tax liabilities EEBIREE
Remeasurement
gain of post-
employment
Accelerated tax benefit
depreciation obligations Lease Total
BREENER
MEHERE  HEHERE e L]
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
#r AT TAT TAT
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE-A-H (1,136) (216) - (1,352)
Credited/(charged) to income statement AR F5HA/ (G1%) 187 = (530) (343)
Charged to equity i Ealabiliy = (126) = (126)
Exchange differences BEHEH 5 - - 5
At 31 December 2019 and :==—n¢+ A=t+-H
1 January 2020 RZE-FF-F—-H (944) (342) (530) (1,816)
Credited/(charged) to income statement E%ﬁﬁpﬁ N/ () 746 - (400) 346
Charged to equity i Ialabiliy - (36) - (36)
Exchange differences N E @ - - @
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EE+-F=1-H (200) (378) (930) (1,508)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses BEMSHBEEDAEEBRG

carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is
probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax
assets of HK$2,919,000 (2019: HK$3,403,000) in respect
of accumulated tax losses amounting to HK$14,545,000
(2019: HK$17,181,000) as at 31 December 2020, that can
be carried forward against future taxable income. As at 31
December 2020, the accumulated tax losses amounting to
HK$1,802,000 (2019: HK$3,044,000) will be expired in five
years. There is no expiry period for the other tax losses.
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B B R W

27. Trade payables, other payables and contract 27. ESEARIE - HENSRIER

liabilities ERAE
2020 2019
—F-8HF —F-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables B SR 37,237 30,537
Contract liabilities ERAE 12,589 14,393
Accrued expenses and other payables — TEIR & I EAth fE 7B 21,185 13,826
71,011 58,756
The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables, based on AEBEE S ENFIBRNRERIZEZAH
the invoice date, is as follows: DT ¢
2020 2019
—ECIEF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET T
Within 30 days 30K 29,186 25,515
31 to 60 days 31 RE60K 4,183 3,190
61 to 90 days 61 KE90K 2,058 1,178
Over 90 days EBEI0K 1,810 654
37,237 30,537
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, other REBZESRNIIE - HiENFIE
payables and contract liabilities are denominated in the keRaEscREBERATEER
following currencies: B :
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
HK$ BT 32,088 28,436
usD E v 29,104 21,747
RMB ARY 5,737 4,455
Others Hity 4,082 4,118
71,011 58,756
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28. Commitments
Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital
commitments of HK$1,751,000 (2019: Nil) in respect of
Enterprise Resources Planning system contracted for but not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements.

28.

29.
flows

Cash flows from operations

Profit before income tax from
continuing operation

Loss before income tax from
discontinued operation

Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net (note)
Interest income
Interest expense
Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment
of financial assets
(Reversal of)/Provision for and write-off
of inventories, net
Provision for impairment of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Share-based payment
Exchange difference
Changes in working capital:
Decrease in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables,
other payables and contract liabilities

Net cash generated from operations

Notes to the consolidated statement of cash

29.

SREEXRBZHANG R

R IBRT 2 BAE 1R

BLNFIE L FEEE
Y% - BERREOITE

EREEENE
HEWE - BB KRREZ
(Wezm) 1R F R (P
FEUA
MBS
TREEMNRE
B (T
FE (), BER
HEH R
E QNI )
RER R
wonBEFAREZ
TREEN RS
BonBEFARSEZ
TREEMBRERA
PARSCAD 23 ERE R0 9 3K
bE S ERR
LEETRE
FERD
B 5 K B A RN IR IE BN

YR
BRI

R=B=BF+=H=1—H  £%HE
B3t 0 2 ARHRE FHAET1,751,000
BIL(CB-NE : B ARENFRE
AR RE BB AAALRE -

RERTREBRHE

SEEBELRERE

BIRENFIA - HRARER

ARAaEEM ORd)

REXBFEEZREFHE

@ SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B h BB E R 2 7

2020 2019
—EEF —F-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
33,485 13,083
(16,115) (7,209)
17,370 5,874
51 34

4,674 6,257
25,430 25,737
(15) 4
(8,276) (10,343)
6,871 8,471
3,533 (571)
(1,334) 4,253
9,744 =
(7) (109)
(70) (108)

- 5
(1,116) 509
692 39,530
(32,048) (1,192)
11,852 (10,828)
37,351 67,523
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29. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash

flows (Continued)

Cash flows from operations (Continued)

Note: Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

comprises:

Net book amount
Gain/(loss) on disposal

Proceeds from disposal

Represented by:
Cash

AREFE
HEz W/ (BB

HE TS FIA

oz
e

The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

is as follows:

As at 1 January 2019
Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 16

Cash flows
Addition

As at 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020
Cash flows
Addition
Non-cash movement on leases, net

As at 31 December 2020

RZE-NFE—A—H

RINB B RS LA E 16565
MR

Bene

hE

NE
GIEGIES S

RZZZZF+-A=1+—H

29. RERERERMWTE @

REXBELEZRERE @

Hrat - HEME - BERRBZAERIEAER

EC
2020 2019
—ECRF —FNF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET TBT
45 84
15 ()
60 80
60 80
TRURDELENRENEIRIT
Borrowings  Lease liabilities Total
f& HESE AE
HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$°000
FET T FET
(57,444) = (57,444)
= (158,310) (158,310)
10,060 22,522 32,582
- (2,907) (2,907)
(47,384) (138,695) (186,079)
(9,600) 23,006 13,406
- (5,765) (5.765)
- 838 838
(56,984) (120,616) (177,600)
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30. Related party transactions 30. BEALRS
Transactions for the year FARZ
(a) Key management compensation (a) TEEENSHH
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Salaries and other short term o kEMEHESERN
employee benefits 12,499 14,603
Pension costs — defined RIRE KA — EBHE RS
contribution plans 126 126
Share-based payment VARG 1D B EERE 2 3R - 5
12,625 14,734
(b) (i) Rental payment to a related party (b) () BEEALZHHHEZ
2020 2019
—F-BHF —FTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental paid to a related e G—HEELAR
company (note) (Bft=E) 160 167
Note: it -

The Group paid rental of a car licence to a company controlled
by Mr. Lai Guanglin, the former executive director and
Chairman of the Company who resigned on 30 March 2018
and currently a major shareholder of the Group, for a fixed
sum of RMB12,000 (equal to HK$13,300) per month as agreed
by both parties. This is also a connected transaction which is
exempted under the Listing Rules 14A.76.

@ SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B h BB E R 2 7

AEBFEEAEE R —HAARNARE
FRTESREIRERZE—N\E=
A=1+H&E RAEERFEERR
Lai Guanglinfe &= HeY R A&
FHENTABEEEMR12,000 AR
(57413,300%87T) ° RS IR £
TEBI4A. 76IEMEAREITHRER
% °
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30. Related party transactions (Continued)

Transactions for the year (Continued)

(b) (ii) Consultancy fees to related parties

Consultancy fee paid to Mr. Lai
Guanglin (note 1)

Consultancy fee paid to a related
company (note 2)

Notes:

30. BEALRS @
FRAXZ (@)

(b) (i) FIFFEA L X 1THIERIE

2020 2019
—E_EHF —ZE-NEF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET

454 FLai Guanglinfc4E
KRR B (FFE1) - 744

SN F—EBEAT]

MR 2 (f5E2) 4,101 2,232
4,101 2,976

Hitt

From 1 January 2019 to 31 March 2019, the Group
paid consultancy fee to Mr. Lai, for a fixed sum of
HK$248,000 per month as agreed by both parties. This
is a connected transaction which is exempted under Rule
14A.76 of the Listing Rules.

From 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020, the Group paid
consultancy fee to a company owned by Mr. Lai, for
a fixed sum of HK$248,000 per month as agreed by
both parties. This is a connected transaction which is
exempted under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules.

On 1 April 2020, the Group entered into a consultancy
agreement with a company directly wholly-owned by Mr.
Lai, the controlling shareholder of the Company, for a
fixed sum of HK$373,000 per month for one year from 1
April 2020 to 31 March 2021. It constitutes continuing
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and is subject to the reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements but is exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

1. AZE—hhF—A—H=E=ZZ
—hWE=ZA=1+—8 ' A£EH
Lait =X E R ENT A E
TE248,000/8 TEME - It 5
BIRIE ETRR4A 7616MER
HREMEEERS -

2. BHIZE-NFHNA—REZ-ZTZ=
TEZA=+—8 A&EHR@E—
FAHLaiEHEB 2 AR FHE
F i e E A EE248,0008 7T
BEEE - WX RIRIE LA
14A.7616MEBSRBNEER
%o

R_ZE_ZTFEMA—H  A&EH
HlaiftE (ARR ZIZERER)
BEEEHRB —BAREILA
T TFMA—RE=T = —
FZA=+—RHEH—F A
& E 373,000 7T 4 B8 5 o o
RIEEMRBE14AZZIRT
ZIEBRARNR 2 FERER
5 HBEBTEMRAUFI4AET
ZER - N RFEEENEE
METEEA S I <7 98 N AR B L 2 3R

-
TE °
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30. Related party transactions (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder

The amount is unsecured, interest free, repayable on
demand and had been fully impaired during the year
(Note 33).

Loan to a related company

On 1 August 2016, the Group advanced a loan of
US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$77,746,000) to
China Victory International Holdings Limited (“CVIL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Agria Corporation, for a
term of 3 years.

The loan carried interest at 10.5% per annum and is
repayable by 31 July 2019. The loan is secured by the
entire issued shares of CVIL executed by Agria Group
Limited (“AGL"), the immediate holding company
of CVIL, and also guaranteed by a deed of corporate
guarantee executed by Agria Corporation in favour
of the Group. Mr. Lai Guanglin, a then director and
ultimate controlling party of the Company, is also a
controlling shareholder of Agria Corporation.

Pursuant to a resolution passed in a special general
meeting on 23 February 2018, the Group and CVIL
agreed to novate and AGL, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Agria Corporation and the immediate holding
company of CVIL, agreed to assume the Group’s loan to
CVIL of US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,357,000)
with all other terms and conditions remained
unchanged.

On 9 May 2019, the Group entered into a loan
agreement (“2019 Loan Agreement”) with AGL to
renew the loan of US$10,000,000 and the annual caps
from 1 August 2019 to 31 July 2022.

@ SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B h BB E R 2 7

(€ (IR AR RFIR

(d)

30. BEAXRG @)

2020 2019
—g-2f —E-NE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT

- 3,106

ZERLEEAM 25 RERE
ENAEFAZERME FE33) -

BT —EEERA

R—ZZE—XR"ENA—HB &%
BEmtEBHKREEBR A A
(fcviLl) (Agria Corporationty
—AE2EMEB AR BTHRIF
B E F10,000,000% T (HER
77,746,000 7T) °

ZEFAEL10.5% 8 - B
RZZT—AFtA=+—HBZH
B - ZERACVILWEEERA
A]Agria Group Limited[AGL] 77
CVILK 2 B B BT EHEIR X
Agria Corporation¥i 1T A EB{E
REEREL - AARIERZES
FH ALai Guanglindt 4
JRAAgria CorporationiZ A% 58 o

BER-Z—N\F_A-_+=HH
THREERRS ERBANRE
= REENCVILREE S MAGL
(Agria Corporation®) & & B
A MCVILB BB A R]) A& A
£ EMCVILKEFX10,000,000E 7T
(}857478,357,000/870) * HABIF
A o

R-Z—NAFRANA  AEHE
AGLETML. E % ([2019E %1
Z1) - LABEHTE(10,000,0005 7T
REEER B=ZE—NFNA—
BE-_Z-_—F+tA=+—Hl-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. Related party transactions (Continued)

(d) Loan to a related company (Continued)

Under the 2019 Loan Agreement, the clause of the
share mortgage executed by AGL, being the sole
shareholder of CVIL, over the entire issued shares of
CVIL in favour of the Group has been removed. Save
as the above amendments, all other terms of the 2019
Loan Agreement remain unchanged and continue in full
force and effect.

On 21 July 2020, the Group and Agria Group Limited
("AGL") agreed to enter into a supplemental loan
agreement (“2020 Supplemental Loan Agreement”)
to adjust downward the interest rate for each of the
interest period from ten point five per cent (10.5%) of
the Loan per annum to five point five per cent (5.5%)
of the Loan per annum.

The loan was also secured by a share charge which
executed by the AGL in favour of the Group as a
continuing security and continuing obligation for
performance by the AGL of its obligations in the 2019
Loan Agreement (as amended or supplemented by the
2020 Supplemental Loan Agreement). Pursuant to the
Share Charge, the AGL will charge 20% of its share
interests in Agria Asia Investments Limited (“AAIL")
to the Group. AAIL is a company with limited liability
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is wholly-
owned by the Borrower. AAIL is indirectly holding a
share equity investment in an agricultural enterprise
in New Zealand through Agria (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
("Agria Singapore”), the only and wholly-owned direct
subsidiary of AAIL.

Save and except for the revision on the original interest
rate and the share charge by AGL, all other terms as set
out in the 2019 Loan Agreement remain unchanged.

Pursuant to a resolution passed in a special general
meeting on 12 August 2020, 2020 Supplemental Loan
Agreement was approved.

The annual caps of the maximum principal loan
outstanding for the financial years ended/ending 31
December 2020, 31 December 2021 and period ending
31 July 2022 were US$10,000,000 for each year/period.

B B R W

30. BEAXRG @)

(d)

BT —[EEZE L 7 ()

BIE2019E Xz - UAKE A
Z@mA ' BAGLUACVILAME—R
R)BCVILM 2 E BTN
IR R A ERAVERE Mk -
B EEETIN © 2019 R i3
FTE B IERERTE R g E B 1
RRARAER °

RZEBEZFFLAZ+—H K&
E & Agria Group Limited ([AGL])
RIBFI—Mh#xEXHH
(T2020/FE K= & FE
HNMEBERZ BFANE+HR
E(10.5%) TRAZEERZ BFFIX
RhEAE(5%) °

ZERMBAGLUAREE AR =
BUHNRODHZERE - UER
AGLIB1T2019E F 3% (£82020%
RERBHEAET ST NEE
EZHBRERISEEE - RER
MFEE - AGLE B HE N Agria Asia
Investments Limited (TAAIL]) &9
20%MHETAEE - AALR—HER
EEBERRBESTMAINERA
AR FBERAZERE - AAILIER
Agria (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. ([Agria
Singapore] © AAAILKE—F 2 &
BEEWBAR) BERE —BHA
HEEQT 2 HE -

RS ETRURIE R AGLAE 2 5
5N+ 2019 BRI HATH AT
HAB RIS T -

BER_ZE_EFNA+_BHK
RERIRKSREBARZZE © 2020
AREREDERE -

BE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—8H"
T+ -A=+—HItFHK
FERHEZZ-_FtA=1—
BIEHB  SEFE HEZz&
BAREEERASBFE LR A
10,000,000 7T °
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30. Related party transactions (Continued) 30. BEALRZ @

(d) ET—EEZE: (&)

(d) Loan to a related company (Continued)

Since the 2019 Loan Agreement came into effect on 1
August 2019, the historical figures of the transaction
(being the maximum principal loan outstanding and
the actual interest incurred) for the period from 1
August 2019 to 31 December 2019, and that for the
period from 1 January 2020 to 11 August 2020 were
US$10,441,000 and US$10,645,000 (Note) respectively.

The annual caps of the interest amounts for the financial
period from 1 January 2020 to 11 August 2020, period
from 12 August 2020 (assumed the effective date of
2020 Supplemental Loan Agreement) to 31 December
2020, year ending 31 December 2021 and period
ending 31 July 2022 were US$645,000, US$214,000,
US$550,000 and US$320,000 respectively (“Annual
Caps”). The 2020 Supplemental Loan Agreement,
Annual Caps of the principal loan outstanding and
interest amounts were approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the Company's special general meeting
on 12 August 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the interest
income from AGL amounted to approximately
UsS$858,000 (equivalent to HK$6,685,000) (2019:
US$1,050,000 (equivalent to HK$8,254,000)).

As at 31 December 2020, the loan to AGL amounted
to US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$77,830,000)
(31 December 2019: US$10,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$78,229,000)).

Note:

For the purpose of calculation of the historical figures and the
Annual Caps, the Effective Date of the 2020 Supplemental
Loan Agreement is assumed to be 12 August 2020, being the
expected date of fulfillment of the conditions precedent under
the 2020 Supplemental Loan Agreement.
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B2019ER R =_Z—LEN
A—BAME  ZRXRHGHA-FT—N1
FNA—BRE-_ZT— ﬂ¢+_
A=+—HIEHBER=_ZT=F
F—HA—BRBRE_ZT-_ZFNA
+— B IEHRE/E S #E (BIRE
BN ERLASBREREEN
FE) » 2B1A10,441,000% 7T K
10,645,000% 7t (%) °

M- -_TF—A—HE2-ZT—
ZFENA+—B  ZE-ZFN
A+=-H(RZZB®LE2020%
TERBERERBSH)E+ A
=+t BItHE - — T ——F+—
B=Z+—HALYUBEEREE =
E-__F+A=+—H8ItHH
FIESREFE LR % 5 A645,000
7T~ 214,0003 7T * 550,0003%
JL}%320,000%FE 7T ([FE EBR]) °
ARARBRRER-_Z_ZTFENA
+ = ARTHREERIRS it
2020 R E X HE ERA S
RSB FELR -

HE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=1+—H1t
FE ﬁéAGLﬁﬁ B BUAL &
858,000 7T (1855 1726,685,000/%
J0) (ZZ— A4 : 1,050,000 7T
(FBZ78,254,0007T) ) ©

R-ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—0 &
AT AGLAY £ /510,000,000 7T
(}8Z77477,830,000/8 7T (ZE—Hh
F+=-—HA=+—H : 10,000,000
7T (FBZ£1478,229,000/&7T)) °

At -

ABTERLEERFELR  BXR
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31. Statement of financial position and reserve

movement of the Company

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Prepayments and other receivables
Tax recoverable

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity holders
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Other payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the board of Directors on 24 March 2021 and

was signed on its behalf:

&E

FRBEE

M BB KR
iSEIN NGRS &=

REBEE

TE 1375 K A AR
A Y@ 7508

& AT PR T 1 A IR
Re RIRTTHES

HEE

R
BHEFEA
AR

G
s

a8\

REBAE

HAb SRR
AN PNIE /S
HEE
HESKAE
REBEEFE

REERRBDAE

Lai Fulin 38188

Director£ %

31. RARMBMRRTR R FEEEE

As at 31 December

R+=RA=+-8H
2020 2019
i —F-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
et FET FAET
24 52
90,440 90,440
90,464 90,492
481 494
- 2,873
40,297 39,781
2,078 1,332
42,856 44,480
133,320 134,972
26,645 26,665
() 101,544 99,626
128,189 126,291
2,412 1,089
2,719 7,592
5,131 8,681
133,320 134,972
37,725 35,799
128,189 126,291

ARRNMBEANRERAEZTEN -F
“—F-A-THBE#R YRRES

eRE

Yu Ben Ansheng 81 %4
Director& %
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31. Statement of financial position and reserve

movement of the Company (Continued)

Note:

(i)  Reserve movement of the Company

At 1 January 2019

Loss for the year

Share-based payment

Transfer upon lapse of share options

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

Profit for the year
Repurchase of shares and cancelled
Transfer upon lapse of share options

At 31 December 2020

Note:

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares issued by
the Company in exchange for all the issued ordinary shares of
World Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. and the value of net assets of
the underlying subsidiaries acquired by the Company in 2000.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders, subject
to a solvency test. At the Group level, the contributed surplus
is reclassified into its component of reserves of the underlying

subsidiaries.

R=F-NE-A-H
TERER

SABAD REREAO AR
REERRARER

REEER
EIRRR D R it
REERERNER

R=2-2£+-A=t-R
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31. RARMBRRR R FEEEE

(#&)
Mz -
() AREFEZEY
Contributed  Share-based
Share surplus payment  Accumulated
premium (note) reserve deficits Total
MR
BB RERH
RADEE i) e iR faE
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
P FET FET AT AT
126,618 86,759 4,356 (115,166) 102,567
- - - (2,946) (2,946)
- - 5 - 5
- - (4,012) 4,012 -
126,618 86,759 349 (114,100) 99,626
- - - 1,984 1,984
(66) - - - (66)
- - (349) 349 -
126,552 86,759 - (111,767) 101,544
Hits

KRB ZBARBBRTIHEARR B BIRE
World Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. Z=BE
BATE MR M T 2 RN EEEARF

FrisfE A KT B AR —

T

—==

TELZ

BEFEMERCEZR - REBARE
—NN—FREPERERT) » BARER
ERaBRENERER AR ZER
T AR TR - EALEZIRE
£ BARBERSBLAEHENB AR

Z G EHRER D

o
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32. Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures 32. EENRFZFER BREBEFB(L

required by section 383 of the Hong Kong B (5£622FE) £383K K
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies (AR BEESHRER) RE)
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits (6622GE) REB(LEMARAD
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK BV E M E H BV 15 58)
Listing Rules)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EBRTHEARME
The remuneration of each director and the chief BESRITBBEREE_Z—N
executive for the year ended 31 December 2019 and FR-ZZFZTF+_A=+—HIE
2020 is set out below: FERNMSEINAT

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HEZRZRETIACT-RLEE

Emoluments paid o receivable n respect of  person's services a a irector, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

FREE(FRRANTIENEARLE RERRT ZNTRUNE

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect

of director's

other service

in connection

Remunerations  with the

stimated ~ Employer's paidor  management

monetary  contrbutions  receivablein  of the affars

value 0a  respectof of the

ofother  retirement  accepting  Company or

Discretionary ~~ Housing ~~ benefits benfit ~officeas its subsidiary

Fees Slry  bonuses  allowance /o) scheme  director  undertaking Total
HERADT
FEHENT
BER  LENER
HABAN FHY EREE RHE4ES
fHEhEE  EMBH RN AR
Name of Directors 1] fig B¢ OBERD  REEE () HEER dEGAEE  dEMNEE a8

L1 HSOD KOS KO KO HSO HSID KW

" S S g - T
Fir Fir Fr Lir Fir Lér LEr Fir Tér

Lai Fulin (note (i) BB ) - 175 JE(] - 60 18 - - 3,065
Yu Ben Ansheng (note (ii) i) - 2640 - - 0 1 - - pA[l]
Waong Yee Shuen, Wilson ik ] - - - - - - - 0
Chen Wei Wen Kex 1% - - - - - - - 15
Guan Zhigiang i ] - - - - - - - ]

550 5391 JE (] 0 3% 6333
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32. Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

Name of Directrs

Lai Fulin (note (i)

Yu Ben Ansheng (note (i))
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Chen Wei Wen

Guan Zhigiang

@ SOFTPOWER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED E Zh BB ER 2 7

R0
AR
Bl
Rex

32. EEMNENER (REFE(D
BIRGI) (3£622F) 3831 K
(RRIBRBESREER) RH)
(565622GE) R EB(LHARA
HYRE ML WK E) @)

(a) EBRITHARBME @

For the ear ended 31 December 2019
BEET-NETCA=T-ALER

Emoluments pid orrecevable i respec o  perso'ssenvcesasa diector, whether of the Company or s subsidary undertzking
fEAEE(MARADTE ANRAT RS RARRT LY e

Fees

150

Discretonary
Sy bonuses

§ BRI
HST0 00
Tt T
L7 63
2000 =
5384 63

Emoluments

paid or

Teceiiable

inrespect

of drectors

othersenvice

in connection

Remunerations ~~~ with the

Etimated ~ Employer's pador  management
monetary  contboutons recehablein  of theaffs
alue 03 respectof ofhe
ofother — refirement — accepting  Compenyor
Housing fenefts benefit — offceas it subsidary

dowence (o) sheme drecior ~ undertaking Totdl
HERANT
EHENT
dEa DRMER
RbEfn  BIM BEER REAMES
HHEHEBE  RMEH REN REARN
REEY () AR dRMoMe  dmube &

/A1 S /A 11}
it fr TEr T Tt TEr

140 18 = - 3538
140 18 = = 118
- 0
150

0

i) £ 6873



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:
(i) Mr. Lai Fulin is the Chairman of the Company.

(i)~ Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

(i)  Other benefits include share option and other allowance.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2019: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2019: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services (2019: Nil).

B O S B R M
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

32. Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors, or controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such directors (2019:
Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 30, there are no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Company’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2019: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB B H R P R
33. Discontinued operation 33. RITEEER
Analysis of the result of discontinued operation is as follows: RIDEEEB 2 EBOWWT ¢

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2020 2019
b et 22 —T-NF
HKS$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Revenue WA 277 3,819
Cost of sales SHE AR (2,143) (8,260)
Gross loss EEE (1,866) (4,4417)
Other gains, net H A EFRE 15 -
Selling and distribution costs SHE R HHAA (73) (244)
General and administrative expenses —RITBE R (1,323) (2,528)
Provision for impairment of SREENRERE
financial assets (3,124) =
Provision for impairment of property, M - BB R ERERE
plant and equipment (9,744) =
Operating loss KR (16,115) (7,213)
Finance income, net B IS U F 58 - 4
Loss before income tax T RIEE (16,115) (7,209)
Tax credit HIAE R 307 86
Loss for the year from discontinued RILEEEB 2 FEFHE
operation (15,808) (7,123)
Attributable to: ERER
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEAA (10,560) (4,763)
Non-controlling interests Eaaliig T (5,248) (2,360)
(15,808) (7,123)
Analysis of the cash flows of discontinued operation is as RIPEBEE 7SRO
follow:
2020 2019
bt 242 —T-NF
HKS$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Operating activities cash flows KREEB RSN 94 (3,703)
Investing activities cash flows WEEEZ2IREMN (202) =
Financing activities cash flows BERE 2 RSN 84 3,765
(24) 62

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 # @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S WS e B R

34. Subsequent event

*

On 24 March 2021, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary in
the PRC entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party (the “Purchaser”) pursuant to which
the Group sells 100% equity interest in Guizhou Zhongguan
Industry Development Limited* (BN FPEEXZEREERAF)
(“Guizhou Zhongguan Industry”) to the Purchaser for a cash
consideration of RMBI1.

The principal business and activity of Guizhou Zhongguan
Industry was investment holding which owns 66.7% interests
of Guizhou Zhongguan New Energy Limited* (&M /& #7
8E)RABRAR]). Guizhou Zhongguan Industry recorded net
liabilities position as at 31 December 2020 and its results
have been accounted for as a discontinued operation in the
Group’s consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2020.

For identification purpose only
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Name

£

Incorporated and operating in
Hong Kong

EEBHIREE

Bun Kee (International) Limited

Wad (BIR) BR AR

Hamerwind Logistic Company Limited
REMTERAT

Established and operating in Macao

tRFIAVRAE

Bun Kee Building Material and
Equipment (Macao) Co., Ltd.
Wi kB (R BR A

Established and operating in the PRC

EHERLREE

Guizhou Zhongguan New Energy
Limited*(note)

SN ERARAR (i)

Note:

The entity is established as a limited liability equity joint venture in

the PRC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries

Principal Activities

Trading of construction materials,
mainly pipes and fittings in
Hong Kong

REBHSRENH
(FE2REEREN) 285

Provision of warehousing and logistic
services in Hong Kong

REBRERT RRRE

Trading of construction materials,
mainly pipes and fittings in Macao

REMERENH (X RAEE
REH) 285

Manufacture and sale of biomass pellet

fuel products in the PRC
RPEEEREE EMERRME
Em

B B R W

35. XEMBRRAER

Particulars of issued and fully paid
share capital/registered capital

BRIRBERS/ ERER

100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each and
3,000,000 non-voting deferred
shares of HK$ 1 each

100RBREREI AT BRRR
3,000,000/ EREE1ETL
ELZRELERD

800 ordinary shares of HK$100 each

800 B RA(E100ET L ERK

MOP50,000

50,0005

RMB15,000,000

AR 15,000,000

Percentage
ARl

Attributable Held by
to the Group subsidiaries
ARERE WELRSE
100 100
100 100
100 100
66.67 66.67

EENPFERINEREETSERE -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A s R
Restated
Egdl
(Note)
(H172)
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—ERF ZFtF —F/\F —F-NF ZBCEF
Results B HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHEIT FETT FEIT FET FET
Revenue ON 619,203 650,461 538,155 527,552 497,295
Profit before income tax i AT Fl 57,860 84,174 29,472 13,083 33,485
Tax expense IS B (7,297) (9,386) (4,621) (1,530) (2,773)
Profit for the year FEHEH 50,563 74,788 24,851 - -
Profit for the year from REEEXER L
continuing operation FEHEF - - - 11,553 30,712
Loss for the year from RIFEEEL 2

discontinued operation FEEE - - (7,123) (15,808)

Profit for the year R A 50,563 74,788 24,851 4,430 14,904
Attributable to: FEBR
Equity holders of PIN/NEIE - ey
the Company BEA 50,572 74,945 26,015 6,790 20,152
Non-controlling interests  FE{EpEAE S 9) (157) (1,164) (2,360) (5,248)
50,563 74,788 24,851 4,430 14,904

Assets and liabilities EERARE

Total assets BEE 598,173 671,953 672,880 795,370 815,732
Total liabilities wam (161,905)  (159,911)  (131,447)  (249,334)  (254,510)
Total equity B 436,268 512,042 541,433 546,036 561,222
Note: Kiat

The results of operation of biomass pellet fuel products prior to 2019 have %%E%ﬁ*ﬂ%ﬂéﬁ BER_F—NLFUATHR
not been restated or reclassified. BAREEYIHENSE -
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